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Corporate Profile
DA

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on |6 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.
(“MOBI Shenzhen"), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI
Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co.,, Ltd. (“MOBI Xian"), MOBI Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK"), Xian MOBI New Material and Technology Co., Ltd and
Shenzhen MOBI Communication System Co,, Ltd..

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and
base station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystems in China. Our business consists of the
design, manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and
solutions that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems,
including, wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-
SCDMA, CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), satellite communication and microwave
transmission networks. We sell our products to network operators in China and overseas
directly for deployment into the networks they are constructing and operating. We also
sell our products to some of the world's leading wireless network solution providers who
incorporate our products into their wireless coverage solutions, such as their proprietary

base stations, which they then sell to network operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long term

relationships with our customers.
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Corporate Information
NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE HEMREE
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY I-1104, Cayman Islands P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC RE A = B it

7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, PEERERITELERERA L

Guangdong Province, PRC 7%

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG ERTEE I

Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong BB ETITENRERAERAE
1902 &

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg

Executive Directors HITES

Hu Xiang (Chairman) A (EE)

Shao Zhiguo AR &

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Qu Degian BiEE

Lai Yongxiang FEOK [A]

Yan Andrew Y. Bk

Yang Dong FR

Independent non-executive Directors BIUKHTES

Li Tianshu FREF

Zhang Han G

Bao Fan B

COMPANY SECRETARY DNEME

Lau Wing EES

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERK

Hu Xiang ik

Lau Wing Gl

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEg

Zhang Han (Chairman) ()

Li Tianshu ESN i

Bao Fan B
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Qu Degjan

Yan Andrew Y.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Yang Dong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
[/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-86186100 (ext 1317) Miss Dai Wei and Miss Ye Chen

Email: if@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Financial Highlights
BB E

Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type
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Financial Highlights
PBEE

KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES TEMHRIE
(All amounts are expressed in RMB' million unless otherwise stated) (BEBEHBIN TEEBEAUNARBEE
T25)
2012 2011
20125 2011 5
Revenue WA 687.8 798.1
Gross profit EF [15.7 2121
(Loss) profit before taxation TR (&8 FE (43.3) 529
Net (loss) profit attributable to shareholders RRER FE A (518 ) AR (39.5) 4.4
Total assets BEE 1,555.1 16687
Net current assets MBEEFE 720.1 803.9
Net assets attributable to shareholders REREIEEEFE 1,011.0 1,067.6
Inventories tumover days FEREXH 195 198
AR turnover days W AR BB R & 353 318
AJP turnover days FERTRR SR B R B 275 321
Current ratio BN 2.34 234
Gearing = V=R 3.5% 2.7%
No. of issued shares, million shares eI A (BER) 807.8 7985
Net assets value per share, RMB BREEFEARET) 1.25 1.34
Basic (loss) earnings per share, RMB cents BRER(EER)BN(ARES) (4.94) 531
Retum on average equity RS ZNEIE -3.80% 3.96%
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the board of directors of MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (the “Company"),
| am pleased to present to the shareholders the business development of the Company

and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year").

In 2012, the global economy remained turbulent and the economy of developed countries
was still in the doldrums. The development of the communication equipment industry
was within an interim period of adjustment. The Group managed to overcome difficulties
and achieved not only the deployment of high-end technology products such as multi-
frequency and multi-system and LTE in networks in overseas markets continuous increase
in global market share, but also the further development of the operator markets in

Europe and Asia Pacific, laying the foundation for our future business growth.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group's operating revenue for 2012 amounted to approximately RMB687.76 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 13,8%, while net profit decreased by 193.2% to
record net loss approximately RMB39.47 million over last year. Basic loss per share was

approximately RMBO.05.

6 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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The Group's operating cash flow for 2012 amounted to approximately RMB19.82 million.
As at the end of the Year, the balance of cash and bank deposits of the Group was
approximately RMB264 million.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2012, the Group faced various challenges in the global mobile market and economic
and financial environment. During the year, because of various reasons, operators in the
PRC again postponed the purchase of equipment for base stations. Besides, with great
volatility in European markets, orders from European customers reduced significantly
as compared with last year. Against the backdrop of industrial trends and competition,
the Group deepened its cooperation with world-leading customers by capitalizing on its
customer and technological advantages, further increasing its shares in the international
market. In particular, it made a significant breakthrough in the markets of the overseas
network operators. In 2011, the Group entered into framework purchase agreements
with multinational operator customers in Europe for the first time pursuant to which the
Group became one of the world's few suppliers of antenna products for the customers.
After that, the Group also broke through operator direct-sales markets such as Japan and
Thailand and achieved bulk sales of 2G, 3G and LTE products. Meanwhile, the Group's
products with FDD-LTE technology achieved sales to a North American customer, making

it the only Chinese supplier for the customer’s projects.

Furthermore, the Group devoted to continuous expansion of market shares among
domestic operators and enhanced cooperation with domestic system equipment
manufacturers through its one-stop product and technology solution. The Group won the

biggest share in the tender for purchase of antennas of domestic operators in 2012.

The Group is one of the world's leading manufacturers of products with TD-LTE RF
technology. In the TD-LTE test board of China Mobile in 2011 and 2012, the Group
involved in the network construction of most of the cities. Meanwhile, the Group also sold

its TD-LTE products to Japan and other overseas markets in 2012.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRETE

To sum up, the Group is one of the world's few RF technology providers with leading-
edge technologies in both TD-LTE and FDD-LTE and is also one of the few providers
that can provide the multi-frequency and multi-system antenna technology. In 2012, the
Group has developed TD-LTE and FDD-LTE products for large-scale sales to system
equipment manufacturers. The products were also sold to the PRC and overseas markets.
This enabled the Group to seize a leading market share and acquire network construction
experience during the development of the LTE market. With the rapid growth of mobile

data traffic, the Group believes it will usher in more growth opportunities in the 4G era.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
In 2012, the board of directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the wave of 4G network construction is upcoming. The development
of mobile Internet has led to the exponential growth of mobile data traffic over the
past year and this will even accelerate in the future. The LTE technology may be one of
the technologies with the fastest growth in the history of mobile communication, which
will bring significant development opportunities. The Group will grasp this important
opportunity by capitalizing on the advantage of long-term in-depth cooperation with its

strategic cooperation customers.

The Group has made landmark achievements in the course of internationalization and
gained recognition from major customers in terms of product technology, quality standard
and process experience. In the future, the Group will further develop the markets of
overseas network operators, continuously enter the short lists of multinational and major
regional network operators and continue to increase the Group's share in the global

market on a long-term basis.

8 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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I ' would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for
their kind support and trust, and to our Directors and staff for their diligent work. The
Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and structure,
adapt strategies of product differentiation based on technology and costs to enhance the
integrated competitiveness and ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the
Group. The Company strives to become a top class global provider of radio frequency
technology for mobile communication in order to maximise the retumns to its shareholders

and the society.

Hu Xiang

Chairman and chief executive officer

Shenzhen, PRC
I3 March 2013
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Management Discussion
EEBNRR DN

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

When compared with last year, revenue decreased by approximately RMBI 10.29 million,
or approximately 13.8%, to RMB687.76 million in 2012 (201 I: RMB798.06 million).

Sales of antenna system increased by 9.4% to approximately RMB271.31 million (201 I:
RMB248.03 million), while sales of base station RF subsystem decreased by approximately
39.8% to RMB284.50 million (201 1: RMB472.15 million). However, sales of products of
coverage extension solution increased substantially by 69.5% to RMBI131.96 million (201 I:
RMB77.88 million).

In 2012, sales of 2G products as a percentage of the Company's total revenue declined
to approximately 36.3%, while the percentage of sales of 3G and LTE products increased
to approximately 28.5% and percentage of sales of multi-frequency multi-system products

also increased to more than | 1.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Antenna system

In 2012, PRC network operators deferred network building, and the progress of network
building was slower than expected, but there were signs of recovery. In particular, China
Mobile has accelerated the pace of building its TD-SCDMA network in 2012, which
enabled sales of the Company's TD-SCDMA antenna grew significantly by approximately
45.0% as compared to last year.

In addition, the Company made a major breakthrough on the direct sales market
comprising overseas operators and commenced bulk sales of GSM, 3G and multi-
frequency multi-system antenna to the markets of Japan and Thailand. The Company
also realised bulk sales in overseas markets, such as India, through core equipment
manufacturers. As network technology being upgraded continuously, station sharing
by multiple networks was more common overseas, leading to a significant increase in
the demand for multi-frequency multi-system antenna, sales of the Company's multi-
frequency multi-system antenna grew substantially by approximately 48.4% as compared
to last year. The Company believes that the demand for mobile communication network
building in emerging economies in Asia Pacific and Latin America has resumed growth, and
such demand will gradually shift from single-frequency single-network antenna to multi-

frequency multi-system and special coverage antenna.

Nevertheless, the growth in the aforesaid markets was partially offset by the drastic fall
in purchasing demand from some international equipment manufacturers and operator
customers in view of the gloomy economy and fierce competition in the communication

sector in Europe and United States.

Base station RF subsystem

Revenue from the Company's base station RF subsystem in 2012 dropped by
approximately 39.8% to approximately RMB284.50 million, due to the drastic fall in the
purchasing demand from some international equipment manufacturers and operator
customers affected by the gloomy economy and fierce competition in the communication

sector in Europe and United States.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Affected by customers’ business adjustments and the external environment, the purchasing
demand for the Company's products from Nokia Siemens Networks and Alcatel-Lucent
slumped by approximately 67.2% and 62.3%, respectively, to RMB41.36 million and
RMB66.64 million. Since current sales of our products to the aforesaid customers are
mainly 2G RF subsystem products, as a result sales revenue from the Company's 2G RF
subsystem products in 2012 plummeted by approximately 60.5% as compared to last
year. However, since the Company has completed the development of new 3G and LTE
projects for the above international equipment manufacturers in 2012 and these projects
will gradually commence production in 2013, it is anticipated that the sales revenue will

recover notably.

Revenue from domestic equipment manufacturer customers increased slightly by
approximately 2.8% to RMB263.77 million. In particular, revenue from TD-SCDMA RF
subsystem doubled, the growth was mainly attributable to the increased investment in

TD-SCDMA network by China Mobile.

In addition, revenue from sales of the Company's WCDMA RF subsystem significantly
increased by approximately 68.4% as compared to last year, which was mainly attributable

to the upgrading of product mix for international equipment manufacturer customers by

the Company and increase in demand from domestic equipment manufacturer customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWE DT

Meanwhile, the Company's TD-LTE RF subsystem products were massively utilized in
the building of TD-LTE networks in China and Japan in 2012. In addition, various models
of FDD-LTE RF subsystem products passed the tests in the North American market
and commenced small-scale delivery. This placed the Company in the leading position
among global players of TD-LTE and FDD-LTE RF technologies. The Group believes that
diversified customers and development of high-end products will help to enhance the

performance growth and profitability of the Group's RF subsystem products.

Coverage extension solution

In 2012, revenue from the Company's coverage extension solutions still increased by
approximately 69.5% to RMBI31.96 million. In particular, revenue from aesthetic antenna
declined by approximately 24.1% to RMB23.85 million, whereas revenue from electric
cables, indoor antenna and other products increased significantly by approximately 132.7%
to RMBI08.1I million. Increase in the sales of electric cables was mainly attributable to

contractual settlement of previous projects by domestic operators.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENRR DN

Customers

As mentioned above, although there were considerable delay in the purchases by
PRC network operators, however, signs of recovery were shown in 2012. Total
revenue generated from China Mobile Communication Corporation, China United
Telecommunications Corporation and China Telecommunications Corporation was
totalling approximately RMB243.68 million as compared to RMBI166.90 million in 201 1,

representing an increase of 46.0% year-on-year.

Furthermore, in 2012, the Company made a major breakthrough on the direct sales
market comprising overseas operators and commenced bulk sales of GSM, 3G and multi-
frequency multi-system antenna to the markets of Japan and Thailand. Benefiting from
economic recovery and growth as well as issuance of telecommunication licenses, mobile
network investments in Asia-Pacific and Latin American recovered significantly in 2012.
The Company believes mobile network investments in the above emerging economies
are expected to maintain positive growth in future, particularly the growth in demand
for multi-frequency multi-system antenna and special coverage antenna will be more

remarkable, and the Company has obvious advantages in such product technologies.

At the end of 201 I, the Company signed a three-year framework procurement agreement
with a major European operator, online tests and a small quantity of bulk sales were
carried out in 2012. Meanwhile, commercial and technological exchanges between other
major European operators and the Company were further accelerated, and it is believed

that new breakthrough will be made in near future.

In the next few vyears, an important strategic direction of the Company will be active
expansion of overseas operator market in stages and enhancement of the influence of the
Company's brand name among overseas operators, which, in tum, will have enhancement

and positive effects on the operations of equipment manufacturer customers.

1 4 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN
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In 2012, revenue from ZTE Corporation (“ZTE") increased by 2.8% to approximately 012 - REFEBAKRNER AR ([ H
RMB263.76 million. Affected by the customers’ business adjustments and external AL 2.8% EH AR 2637618
environment, purchasing demand for the Company’s products from Nokia Siemens T XBEPEBAERIINPRETZE  #HE
Networks and Alcatel-Lucent decreased significantly by approximately 67.2% and 62.3%, PP TS P R R RA AN AR R E &
respectively, to RMB41.36 million and RMB66.64 million, respectively. In the long run, HRBERDRIBEZR D67 2% E AR

system equipment providers such as ZTE, Nokia Siemens Networks, Alcatel-Lucent 4136870 - RELIXEANR 66648 TT
and Ericsson will remain major commercial and technological partners of the Company, NEERE PEHBHN BETAMTH

especially in respect of the business development of LTE. MR RERAREE U EERGRERS
MEARANEEFEERMEIERE L
HEELTEMEBRREL -

The deployment of the Company's products in the network systems of our diversified RARAMZ T EBREEEHEARNREREE

intemational customers strengthened worldwide awareness of the brand name of MOBI. RESENBERS  BATELDEOHER
AR -
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Gross profit

In 2012, gross profit of the Company decreased by approximately 45.5% to approximately
RMBI15.71 million (201 1: RMB212.14 million) and gross profit margin decreased from
26.6%in 2011 to 16.8% in this year.

The gross profit margin of antenna products of the Company decreased from 28.1% in
2011 to 23.4% in 2012, while the gross profit margin of RF subsystem products decreased
from 24.5% to 14.9%. And due to a decrease in the percentage of the sales of aesthetic
antenna with a high gross profit margin, the gross profit margin of coverage extension

solution decreased significantly from 37.8% to 7.4%.

The decrease in the gross profit margin was primarily due to a significant decrease in the
demand for some equipment suppliers’ 2G RF subsystem products, which intensified
the severity of price competition. In addition, since some 2G RF subsystem products
entered the final phase of life cycle and the Company gave discount on the prices of
some products for the purpose of inventory clearance, the profit margin of RF subsystem
products was affected. Moreover, the Company adopted more flexible business strategies
on some projects of domestic operators (mainly for clearance of cable projects) to
accelerate the collection of payments, the profit margin of coverage extension solution

business was significantly affected.
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However, the Company believed that the impact of the aforesaid major events on
the gross profit margin was a one-off effect. In 2012, the development for several new
products projects sold to European customers was completed and entered into the
delivering stage successively. It is expected that overall replacement will be completed
in 2013. Meanwhile, it is expected that demand for 3G, LTE and multi-frequency multi-
system products will increase significantly in 2013, expansion into overseas operators will
drive the growth of antenna products and aesthetic antenna to exceed the Company's
overall business growth, all these will contribute to increase the gross profit margin.
Meanwhile, the Company stepped up its efforts in integrating upstream industrial chains,
which also helped to reduce the procurement costs and increase the gross profit margin.
And the Company is fully confident that the gross profit margin will resume growth in

future.

Other income

Other income decreased to approximately RMB13.52 million, which was attributable
to the decrease in bank interest income as a result of a decrease in the net proceeds
from the listing of the Company's shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“IPO") in
December 2009.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from approximately RMB55.04 million in 201 |
to approximately RMB47.87 million in 2012. It was primarily due to a decrease in staff cost
as a result of a decrease in the amount of employees” bonus amidst the sluggish market.
The Company strengthened cost management in 2012, such as travelling expenses,
logistics expenses and agency fees were reduced, leading to a reduction in distribution and

selling expenses.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 5.8% from approximately RMB80.78 million in 201 |
to approximately RMB76.07 million in 2012, which was attributable to the reinforcement
of cost management by the Company. Increases in social insurance expenditure, welfare
expenses and amortization of intangible assets, and increases in maintenance expenses
and other expenses, resulted in an increase in administrative expenses, which were offset
by a substantial reduction in travelling expenses, entertainment expenses, utility expenses

and office expenditure.

Research and development costs

During the year, the Group recognised development costs of approximately RMBI10.17
million as intangible assets. After the capitalization, development costs increased from
approximately RMB37.59 million in 201 | to approximately RMB47.57 million in 2012,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in material costs and testing fees for

development projects tailor-made for customers and the increase in amortization of

intangible assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

Finance costs increased substantially from approximately RMB60,000 in 2011 to
approximately RMB I million in 2012, which was mainly attributable to the increase in bank

borrowings to satisfy the funding requirements for business growth of the Company.

(Loss) profit before taxation

(Loss) profit before taxation decreased significantly by approximately 182% and recorded
a loss before taxation of approximately RMB43.28 million (2011: RMB52.90 million). Net
profit margin before tax charge reduced from approximately 6.6% in 2011 to -6.3% in

2012.

Taxation

Current income tax expenses reduced from approximately RMB10.95 million in 2011
to RMB2.96 million in 2012. Effective tax rates calculated from the tax charged to the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income over (loss) profit before tax were

approximately 8.8% and 19.9% for 2012 and 201 I, respectively.
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(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year 2012 decreased substantially by approximately 193.2% and
recorded a loss for the year of approximately RMB39.47 million (201 I: RMB42.36 million).
Our net profit margin was approximately -5.7% in 2012, compared to 5.3% in 201 1. In
summary, the decrease in our net profit margin was due to a decrease in the Group's
revenue amount as a result of the deferral of network building by PRC operators and

fluctuations in the operations of European customers.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Prospects

Looking forward, the Company will pay attention to both domestic and interational
markets simultaneously and will continue to focus on the area of RF technology for
wireless communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology for

other wireless communications.

The Company believes that, with the popularity of intelligent terminals, mobile internet
applications have entered into a rapid development period, the LTE era has arrived. With
its leading position in customer channels and product technology, the Company is in place

to capture early opportunities riding on the development waves of LTE.

Customers

The Company adheres to the visionary target of "becoming a global leading provider of
RF technology for mobile communications”, and strives to offer its RF solution to leading

system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators around the world.

The Company is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions
to both global system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators, which
enables the Company to maintain a leading edge in product technology and continuous

expansion of customer channels.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2012, the Company carried out research, development and bulk sales on TD-LTE
and FDD-LTE for system equipment customers like ZTE, Nokia Siemens, Alcatel-
Lucent, Ericsson and Datang, such products were sold to China and overseas markets,
this brought to the Company leading market shares and network building experience
in the development of LTE market. Since LTE technology is much more complicated
than previous network building for 2G and 3G and involves multi-network collaborative
management, current LTE network building has adopted the system equipment
manufacturer turn-key method in most cases. The close, strategic and cooperative
partnership relationship established by the Company with global system equipment

manufacturer customers, will enhance the Company's advantages in the LTE market.

In 2012, the Company made a new breakthrough in expanding the overseas direct sales
market, and realized bulk sales in the markets of Japan and Thailand, and orders were also
received from the market of Latin America. The product technology requirements from
overseas operator customers were more complicated, requirements of product quality
and design were more stringent. The Company's capability to realize bulk sales to these
markets proved that the product development of our Company has moved further ahead.
The Company expects that fast growing opportunities will arise in the emerging markets
like Asia Pacific and Latin America in the next few years. The Company will expand its

existing advantages to achieve rapid growth in bulk sales.

At the end of 2011, the Company signed a framework procurement agreement with a
leading European network operator, which enabled the Company to become one of its
three largest suppliers for global antenna procurement in the next three years, and a small
quantity of bulk sales was carried out in 2012. European operators represent one of the
mobile communication markets that place the largest global procurement orders with
most difficult technological requirements, which is in line with the Company's strategic
direction. None of the PRC antenna suppliers has provided any products to the European
operator market. As such, the Company has already gained a strong advantage, and it will
strive to enter the antenna supplier lists of more multinational operators, which will also
significantly boost the sales of the Company's antenna products to turn-key projects of

system equipment customers.
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According to the domestic and international experience in network building, the 3G
network building in the PRC is expected to last for several years. Continuous development
of 3G terminals and increasing data application will drive the growth of 3G network
building in the PRC. In addition, in view of the demand for network capacity expansion
due to the increasing data flow in 2G network, the Company believes that the capital
expenditure of domestic operators will resume growth again in future, which in turn will
boost the demand for antenna and coverage extension products of the Company from
domestic operators as well as the demand for RF subsystem products from domestic

network equipment customers.

Products

In 2012, the Company continued to invest in research and development. Research and
development costs increased by more than 20% as compared to last year, which were

mainly used for the development of LTE and next generation base antenna and RF

technology.
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The Company believes that the technology of our LTE products, including TD-LTE
and FDD-LTE, has achieved domestic industry-leading level, and is directly comparable
with foreign players. In 2012, the Company carried out research, development and bulk
sales on TD-LTE and FDD-LTE products for various system equipment manufacturer
customers, the products were also sold to China and overseas markets, which enabled the
Company to obtain the leading market share and experience in network building during
the development of LTE market. In addition, the FDD-LTE products of our Company
have successfully passed the tests performed by equipment manufacturer customers in

North America and we became the sole technology provider for the project from China.

Meanwhile, for antenna products, our technology for multi-frequency multi-system
antenna was also developing continuously, and consistently maintained an advanced level.
The Company’s multi-frequency multi-system antenna maintained growth for many years
and became the largest business segment of antenna system products, which benefited
from the continuous expansion in demand from overseas operators. The Company
believes that with increasing investments in LTE network, the demand for station sites will
increase further as the coverage radius of LTE base station is shorter, and the demand for
multi-network stations will be more obvious in future. The Company is developing multi-
frequency and multi-system antenna technology which covers TD-LTE and FDD-LTE,
and it believes that huge potential demand will exist in the overseas and China markets in

future.

For RF subsystem products, apart from developing various new products for equipment
customers in 2012, the Company also accelerated the development of next generation
base station RF subsystem products, which were more integrated, more compact and
lightweight. In addition, the Company also expanded the scope of development for
outdoor RF subsystem products, such as outdoor filters for operators, and combined with
antenna system products and other products to provide a one-stop tower-top solutions

for customers.

On coverage extension products, apart from accelerating the upgrading of technology
for domestic aesthetic antenna products, a breakthrough was also achieved in aesthetic
antenna projects of overseas operators in 2012 and received orders. This shows that
our special coverage solution is capable of satisfying the technological needs of overseas

operators, and it is expected to have enormous growth in future.
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With rapid expansion in demand from domestic and overseas operators, it is expected
that during a certain period in future, the growth of antenna system products and aesthetic
antenna products will be higher than the Company’s average level, and the growth of
3G, 4G and special coverage products will also be higher than the average level, so it is

believed that profitability will also be improved notably.

Conclusion

The Company is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for global
network operators and network solution providers in the PRC. It has a wide range of well-
known customers and diversified income sources, which contributes to the positive and

stable growth of the Company.

The Company and the Board will continue to optimise the size and mix of customer base,
adopt competition strategies of differentiation based on technology and cost advantages,
maximise the market opportunities in 3G, LTE and next generation wireless technologies.
The Company will also strive to enhance its integrated competitiveness to ensure the
sound and stable growth of the operating results of the Group and to create value for

maximising returns to its shareholders and the society.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from
our operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings. Our
primary uses of cash have been for our increased working capital requirements, capital
expenditures on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land use rights for

our real properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian in the PRC.

As at 3| December 2012, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB720.05 million (201 1: RMB803.91 million) including inventories of approximately
RMB282.93 million (2011: RMB326.88 million), trade and notes and bills receivable of
approximately RMB637.58 million (201 1: RMB689.91 million) and trade and bills payable
of approximately RMB415.98 million (201 I: RMB444.14 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group maintained an effective management of its working capital. For the year ended
31 December 2012, average inventories turnover, average receivables turnover and
average payables turnover are approximately 195 days (201 I: 198 days), 353 days (201 I:
318 days) and 275 days (2011: 321 days) respectively. We offer credit terms generally
accepted in the antennas and base station RF subsystems manufacturing industry to our
trade customers. In general, the average credit period for local network operators is

longer than global network operators and solution providers.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a pledged bank balances of approximately
RMB4.20 million (201 1: RMB5.74 million), cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB264.39 million (201 I: RMB300.1 1 million) and recorded bank borrowings of
approximately RMB54.36 million (201 1: RMB45.21 million). The current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) basically remained at approximately 2.34 times as
at 31 December 2012 from 2.34 times as at 3|1 December 201 1. The gearing ratio
(bank borrowings divided by total assets) was 3.5% as compared with a gearing ratio of
approximately 2.7% as at 31 December 201 1. The interest rates on the Group's bank

borrowings are designated in both fixed rate and floating basis at prevailing market rates.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position
and adequate resources to support the necessary operating funding requirement and

foreseeable capital expenditure.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases and certain
trade receivables and bank balances of ours are denominated in USD, Euro and HKD.
We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management

monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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After the listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, significant portion of
our bank balances are denominated in HKD. The Board currently considers that the
appreciation of RMB should have an unfavourable impact on the Group's financial results.
The management carried out various measures to limit foreign exchange exposure. As at
31 December 2012, HKD equivalent of approximately RMB2.71 million was kept in our

bank balances.
APPLICATION OF NET GLOBAL OFFERING PROCEEDS

In December 2009 and January 2010, the Group issued a total of 193,958,000 shares
(including 18,443,000 shares issued upon the exercise of over-allocation option). The offer
price was HK$3.38 per share and the net proceeds from the IPO were approximately
equivalent to RMB550 million after deduction of related expenses. As at 31 December
2012, the Company has already applied approximately RMB299 million in accordance
with the description of the use of proceeds in the prospectus of the Company dated 4
December 2009 (the “Prospectus”):

—  Approximately RMB77 million, RMB38 million, RMB48 million were applied in
our office and plants in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian, respectively, for the purchase
of equipment, construction and development of production lines and factories

buildings;

—  Approximately RMB8| million was applied to finance our research and development

efforts in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian;

—  Approximately RMB55 million was applied as general working capital of the Group.

The balance of the net proceeds will also be applied in line with the description in the

Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 3| December 2012, the Group had approximately 2,405 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB145.82 million for the year ended 2012. The
remuneration of the Group’s employees is determined on the basis of their responsibilities
and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the skills and expertise of
relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible

staff based on their performance.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 3| December 2012, bank balances of approximately RMB4.20 million and notes
receivable of approximately RMB21.79 million were pledged to bank to secure the

banking facilities and borrowings provided to the Group respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During 2012, a total amount of 1,345,000 shares of the Company had been repurchased
at prices ranging from HK$0.84 per share to HK$1.02 per share by the Company via
Stock Exchange. The Company had subsequently cancelled all these shares repurchased
during the year. Save as mentioned above, neither the Company nor the Company or any
of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the

current year.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 3|
December 2012.
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RF Passive Tuming

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance
to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices and
continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control management and

reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code") (effective
until 31 March 2012)/Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provision”) (effective
from | April 2012) and the rules on the Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Rules”)
as set out respectively in Appendices |4 and 23 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2012.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following sets

out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:

Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Shao Zhiguo

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian

Lai Yongxiang

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard to the
business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required expertise to
the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have extensive management
experience in the wireless communication antennas and base station RF subsystems
industry. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and senior management

are set out on pages 41 to 49 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships among

members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted with the
responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business, including establishing
and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business plans, financial objectives,
capital investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing its
business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the

executive Directors and members of senior management of the Group.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by
business needs. During the year ended 31 December 2012, four Board meetings, three
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) meetings and three remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) meetings were convened. Details of attendance of
Board meetings of each of the members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of

Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior to
the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the Directors not less
than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make an informed

decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development directions for the
Group and for the daily management of the business of the Group, implementation of the
policies, business objectives and plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board

for the overall operation of the Group.
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Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Hu Xiang
is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu is one of the
founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the telecommunication industry.
Given the current stage of development of our Group, the Board believes that vesting
the two roles in the same person provides our Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of our Group's business
strategies. We shall nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the

prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided that every Director

shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Li Tianshu,
Zhang Han and Bao Fan and two non-executive Directors, namely Qu Degian and Yan

Andrew Y.. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
. formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

. recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration of

Directors and senior management;
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0 determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,

including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

0 review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for

misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
. determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the Company's remuneration policies, the terms of the service
contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior management. Details
of attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note |2 to

the financial statements,

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Bao Fan, one non-executive Director, namely Yang Dong and
one executive Director, namely, Hu Xiang. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Hu Xiang. Currently all new appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board

whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

. possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board;

. ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively;
and
. possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/

organizations.
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During the year ended 3| December 2012, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Details of attendance of Nomination Committee meeting of
each of the members of the Nomination Committee are meeting of each of the members
of the Nomination Committee set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee comprises
all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the Directors,
the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and external audits and
to assist the Board in fuffilling its responsibilities by providing independent view and

supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

. to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of

external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such appointments;

. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

. to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for non-

audit services;

. to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports and
the auditor's report to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced

assessment of the Group's financial position;
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The CG Code stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors at meetings
of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the annual general meeting during the year ended 3| December 2012,

respectively, is set forth in the table below:

Remuneration

Board Committee

Name of Director EEfA Ezxg HHzeEeg
Hu Xiang e 4/4 N/A
TER
Wang Guoying (Note 1) FREEHE) /1 N/A
N
Shao Zhiguo (Note 2) AR B (5T 2) 313 N/A
T
Qu Degjan fER 4/4 /1
Lai Yongxiang FEK[A] 414 N/A
NiEA
Yan Andrew Y. o 3/4 1/1
Yang Dong FR 3/4 N/A
TER
Li Tianshu FRE 4/4 /1
Zhang Han M 4/4 /1
Bao Fan BN 2/4 /1
Notes:
et -

(h Resigned as an executive Director on | April 2012.

R0 12F48 1 HBEIHTES -

(2) Appointed as an executive Director on | April 2012.
R0 12F4H | REEERRITES -
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. The Directors had fulfilled the

relevant requirements under A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code during the year

ended 3| December 2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in each financial year. The Company Secretary
is Mr. Lau Wing and has taken more than |5 hours of relevant professional development

during the year ended 31 December 2012.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without prejudice to
and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth in the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since 17 December 2009,
the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange adopted a stringent system
to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting transactions (“Relevant Transactions”) in
which any Directors are interested in, and transactions with any of our connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any company in which the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually
or collectively, owns a direct or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including
transactions with ZTE Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd, Shenzhen
Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd., and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co,, Ltd.)

(“Relevant Companies”), as follows:

(1) Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a majority
of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, provided
that any non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director interested
in the transactions in question will declare his or her interest and will abstain from

voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in matters

relating to the Relevant Transactions;
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(3)  An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief financial
officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been established to
monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to prepare semi-annual
report in relation to the execution of the Relevant Transactions (“Semi-annual

Report™) for the supervisory committee’s (the “Supervisory Committee”) review;

(4)  The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms and
conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions, devise
and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow, review
Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings to the Board
and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the Relevant Transactions
will be entered into in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole;

and

(5)  The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory Committee

in the Company's interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, two meetings were held by the Supervisory
Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of the sales and
purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies pepared by the
Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee, (i) it had reviewed
and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group and the Relevant
Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were fair and reasonable; (ii)
it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents and interal procurement
procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed rules and guidelines for
Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had followed accordingly; and (iv)
it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive Committee. The Supervisory
Committee considered Relevant Transactions conducted during the review period were
in line with the respective master agreements and the intemal procedures of the Group,
were on fair and normal commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to

be brought to the attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with the

audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total remuneration in respect of audit services

provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMBI.7 million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed as
the external auditors of the Company for 201 3.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects. Management provides such
explanation and information to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the

matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of
the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with

applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of three

months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls
on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard shareholders'

investment and the Group's assets.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control system and believes that, such system is sufficient in providing reasonable
assurances that the Group's assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use
or disposition, transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting records are
maintained. The Group has applied an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group and this process includes updating the
system of internal controls when there are changes to business environment or regulatory

guidelines.
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Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate

resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors for shareholders’ consideration and voting,

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant

to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 79 of our Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
An extraordinary general meeting may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 2| days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 30 Days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.
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¥ ﬁ:~A$ﬁﬂ:

(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meetings may
achieve so by means of convening an extraordinary general meeting following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.mobi-antenna.com).

(i)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquires to our Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at

Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December, 2012, there has not been any change in the

Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of the
Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The Group is
going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular dialogue with

investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each

substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 59, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors and
the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief executive
officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director of
MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002.
Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian Infrastructure University (now
Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring in radio communication in August
1981. During the period from 1972 to September 1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic
transmission and control department of the Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu
then served as chief of the planning and supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin
Tongxun Shebei Co, Ltd. for the period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in
August 1999. Mr. Hu was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from
June 2002 to June 2007 and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. from March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi

Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Shao Zhiguo, aged 49, is an executive Director and is also our vice president in Sales
and Marketing, MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr. Shao graduated from
the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University) with
a bachelor degree in wireless equipment structure design in 1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao
obtained a master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an Electronic Technology
University. During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held such positions as
engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Control
Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and development
in the area of telecommunication measurement and control technology and has received
a second class award in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry of Machine
Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao is a senior member of the Chinese Institute
of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr.
Shao joined our Group in August 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 50, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002. Mr.
Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of Economics
and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further obtained the
qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June 1993 to April 2003,
Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and auditing centre and the deputy
chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd. and since September 2007,
has been the general manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd.. Mr.
Qu joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration

Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Lai Yongxiang, aged 50, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Xian and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr. Lai graduated from the National University of
Defense Technology (BIBIEHEAZ ) in 1989 with a Master's degree in signal processing.
From 1989 to 2000, Mr. Lai served as deputy general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing
Semiconductor Co, Ltd (F # ¥ & 8 A R 22 7)), engaging in product sales and
marketing management. Between 2000 and 2005, Mr. Lai was deputy general manager of
ZTE Corporation, engaging in handset production supply chain integration and handset
marketing management. Since 2005, Mr. Lai has been serving for ZTE Corporation,
responsible for the jobs including the process optimization of handset system. Mr. Lai
has precious experience in the use of communication technology, the integration of
communication system and the marketing management of communication products. Mr.

Lai joined our Group in August 201 I.
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Directors and Senior Management

Yan Andrew Y., aged 55, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian, MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr.Yan was appointed a Director on 2 January
2003. He received a bachelor's degree in engineering from Nanjing Aeronautic Institute
in 1982 and a master of art's degree in International Political Economy from Princeton
University in the United States in 1989. Mr. Yan is the founding managing partner of SAIF
Advisors Limited, an investment advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited. Currently, Mr. Yan
is the chairman and non-executive director of NVC Lighting Holding Limited (HKSE stock
code: 2222); a non executive director of Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited (HKSE stock code: 1296), Digital China Holdings Limited (HKSE
stock code: 0861), China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (HKSE stock code: 1886) and eSun
Holdings Limited (HKSE stock code: 00571); an independent non-executive director of
Fosun Intemational Limited (HKSE stock code: 0656), China Resources Land Limited (stock
code: 1109), China Mengniu Diary Company Limited (HKSE stock code: 2319) and China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (HKSE stock code: 0386, Shanghai Stock Exchange
stock code: 600028, London Stock Exchange stock code: SNP and New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE") stock code: SNP). Mr. Yan is also an independent director of Giant
Interactive Group Inc, (NYSE stock code: GA); a director of Acom Intemational Inc. (NYSE
stock code: ATV), ATA Inc. (NASDAQ stock code: ATAI) and Shenzhen Eternal Asia
Supply Chain Management Ltd. (Stock code of Small and Medium Enterprise Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002183). He was a director of China Digital TV Holding Co.
Ltd. (NYSE stock code: STV) from May 2004 to September 2008; an independent Non-
executive Director of China Qilfield Services Limited (HKSE stock code: 02883) from
September 2002 to June 2009; an independent director of Eastern Communications Co.,
Ltd (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600776) from June 2003 to February 2006;
a director of Shanda Interactive Entertainment Limited (NASDAQ stock code: SNDA)
from March 2003 to January 2005; an Independent Non-executive Director of Stone
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Directors and Senior Management
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Group Holdings Limited from June 2001 to November 2009, the shares of which were
withdrawn from listing on the Stock Exchange in November 2009 and a director of Global
Education & Technology Group Limited from Mar 2007 to Dec 201 1, its shares of which
were withdrawn from listing (NASDAQ with stock code: GEDU) in December 201 1. Mr.
Yan joined our Group in January 2003.

Yang Dong, aged 41, is a non-executive Director and a director of MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI
Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Yang was appointed a Director on | January 2006. Mr. Yang is
a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Mr. Yang graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1995 with a bachelor degree in computer science. In 1997, Mr.
Yang obtained a master degree in accounting from the University of Southern California,
United States. Mr. Yang has been working for SAIF Advisors Limited, an investment
advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited and is currently a partner at an affiliate of SAIF
Advisors Ltd. Mr. Yang was a director of a Nasdaq listed company, Perfect World Co,
Ltd. (stock code: PWRD) during the period from September 2006 to July 2008 and is
currently an independent director of it. Mr. Yang joined our Group in January 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed a
Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976 majoring
in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business economics
at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at Universitat
Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research assistant in the
business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the period from March
1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec Aktiengesellschaft, an
interational manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to become the future managing
director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft,
an international machinery manufacturing enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of
the management board of KSB and then became the chief representative of its Beijing
Representative Office. During the period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of
regional director of Messer, an international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible
for its business development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits
of its joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northern China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China Industrial
Gas Co,, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System Co,, Ltd. Since
2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech Technology Co., Ltd, a
technical promotion service provider and sales service provider. Since 27 March 201 1,
Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Zhong Biao Fang Yuan Anti-counterferting
Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Li has valuable experience in intemational corporate management

and enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq listed
company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit committee since
July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the accounting and financial
reporting processes as well as extemal and internal audit of the Company. Mr. Zhang
received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking University in 1985. He
later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe International Business School
in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic
Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the Manager in the securities department
of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co, Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the
deputy manager at the finance department of China National Technical Import & Export
Corporation, and also the general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory
Co, Ltd. from 1994 to 1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the
general manager, investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management
Co,, Ltd, a fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co,, Ltd,, a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great Wall
Fund Management Co,, Ltd., a fund management company in China, from 2004 to 2005.
Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd, a Chinese venture capital
firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due diligence work in respect
of the financial performance, management and corporate government quality of various
companies and conducting financial analysis of listed companies throughout his various

tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang joined our Group on 25 November 2009.

Bao Fan, aged 42, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25 November
2009. Mr. Bao obtained a master's degree in Economics from Handelshayskolen Bl in
[995. Mr. Bao was the chief strategy officer of Asialnfo Holdings, Inc., a leading IT service
and software company in China, from July 2000 to March 2004. Mr. Bao is currently chief
executive officer of China Renaissance Partners, an investment bank headquartered in

Beijing which he founded in 2004. Mr. Bao joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Liao Dong, aged 42, is our deputy general manager in Sales and Marketing of MOBI
Shenzhen. Mr. Liao graduated from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in
mechanical manufacturing and its automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE
Kangxun Telecom Co., Ltd. during the period from July 1999 to February 2001 and at
ZTE Corporation president’ office during the period from February 2001 to March 2003.
Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.

Han Jianrong, aged 52, is our deputy general manager in Production of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Han graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical
University with a bachelor degree in foundry engineering in 1982, Mr. Han has over
20 years of experience in production. Mr. Han was appointed as an engineer at Xi'an
Aerospace Engine Corporation and No. 771 institute of China Aerospace Corporation
in 1989 and 1993 respectively, and was awarded his professional qualification as senior
engineer by China Aerospace Corporation in 1997. Mr. Han joined the Group in February
2000.

Kong Weitong, aged 49, is our deputy general manager of Internal Operations of MOBI
Shenzhen. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Shaanxi Institute
of Finance and Economics (now School of Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong
University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked at the China Aerospace Corporation
from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and audit, where he was appointed as an
accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in 1999. Mr. Kong became a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined
the Group in May 2002.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Chen Zhaojun, aged 36, is the chief financial officer of the Company and MOBI Shenzhen,
and is responsible for the financial management of MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Xiamen University in July 1999, and later
obtained a master’s degree in economics from Xiamen University in July 2002. Mr. Chen
worked as Senior Project Manager in the Investment Department of ZTE Corporation
from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Chen has been a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC since
2006. Mr. Chen joined the Group in July 2004.

Chen Zhilong, aged 34, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of the research and development of antenna products. Mr. Chen Zhilong
graduated from School of Electronic Information, Wuhan University in 2003 with
a bachelor of science degree in wireless physics. He joined the Group in 2003 and
successively held the posts of electrical engineer, research and development project
manager and division head. He is currently the general manager of the antenna product

business division.

Ye Rong, aged 33, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the research and development of antenna products. Mr. Ye Rong graduated
from Xidian University in 2005 with a master of science degree in electromagnetic field
and microwave technology. He joined the Group in 2005 and successively held the posts
of electrical engineer, research and development project manager and division head. He is

currently the general manager of the radio-frequency product business division.

An Liang, aged 33, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the domestic operator market. Mr. An Liang graduated from Northwestemn
Polytechnical University in 2002 with a bachelor's degree in international finance. He
joined the Group in 2002 and successively held the posts of sales manager for various
provinces in China. He is currently the general manager of the northern marketing region
in China.

Zhou Lingbo, aged 32, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of administration and personnel. Ms. Zhou Lingbo graduated from the
department of law of Nanjing University in 2004 with a LLB degree. She joined the Group
in 2004 and successively held the posts of director of the infrastructure office and director

of the president’s office.
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Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lau Wing, aged 40, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and company
secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI Shenzhen.
He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial and accounting management and
interal audit affairs. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor's degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996, and later obtained a master's degree in business
administration (financial service) in 2005. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau has |7 years of experience in finance,
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lau had held senior financial

positions in several listed companies. Mr. Lau joined our Group in May 201 .
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16
December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on |7 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of antenna system,
base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage extension solution.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during

the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of affairs of

the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 67 to 148.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 3|
December 2012.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a 5 years summary of the resufts and assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the audited financial

MBERBE

TEBEAEEBRERENRFENRER
BENER BERRERREEGHHR

statements. x o
Year ended 3|1 December
BZNA3NALEE
2012 201 | 2010 2009 2008
20124 2011 4 20104 2009 2008 £F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
RESULTS ]
Revenue 'ON 687,764 798,060 1,041,420 980,222 671,182
(Loss) profit before tax AT (1R FE (43,279) 52,899 98955 126,438 69,477
Tax R 3,807 (10,541) (14,850) (18,968) (7,552)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)FE (39,472) 4,358 84,105 107,470 61925
(Loss) profit attributable to ~~ ANARIHEA A
owners of the Company FEfE (&8 B (39,472) 42,358 84,105 107,470 61925
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FERBDEE 297,668 268,133 203819 146,659 135,054
Current assets MENEE 1,257,382 1,400,567 1,493,501 | 455,184 658,485
Current liabilities TEaE (537,328) (596,657) (655,857) (679392) (463,290)
Non-current liabilities FEnBEFE (6,712) (4421) (3.569) (3499) (2,673)
Net assets EEFE 1,011,010 1,067,622 1,037,894 918,952 327,576
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT W% BERRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On 13 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000| each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on |
June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.000001 each of the Company is
issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share for every ten shares held

on | June 2010. These new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all aspect.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year

are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB539.0 million. This amount includes the Company’s share premium account
of RMB545.3 million at 31 December 2012, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 87.6% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 38.0%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than [9%.

The Directors' interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the paragraph

headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts” on page 60 of this report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shao Zhiguo

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian

Lai Yongxiang
Yan Andrew Y.
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Hu Xiang, an executive Director, Mr.
Qu Degjan, and Mr. Yan Andrew Y., non-executive Directors will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still considers

each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 41 to 49 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT
Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with our Company commencing from |7 December 2012 for a term of three

years, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with our Company for a term of three years commencing from |7 December 2012 (except
for Li Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on | July 2007) and renewable by

mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors' duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION B AE
Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the financial KRR BERESSFBANTBEREN T

statements. 26 °

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share option scheme during TRFEAAREREASZFEANE
the year:

*Exercise
price Outstanding
per share as at Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
(RMB) beginning during during as at end
Name Date of grant ~ *&MR{TFE Exercisable period of the year the year the year  of the year
## R A (AR#) A{TEHE FAHRTE FACKR FABTHE FRERTE
Directors:
8
Hu Xiang 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 4,510,000 — (4,510,000) —
HA
Shao Zhiguo 15.12003 0.3208 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 1,875,000 — (1,875,000) —
AR
Qu Degjan 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 660,000 — (196,000) 464,000
JERRE
Lai Yongxiang 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 1,298,000 — (1,298,000) —
FEOK A
Sub-total: 8,343,000 — (7,879,000) 464,000
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*Exercise
price Outstanding
per share asat Lapsed Exercised Outstanding
(RMB) beginning during during as at end
Name Dateofgrant  *&MRITEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year of the year
& RHAM (AR®)  ITREE FOERTRE  FREXM  FABAE FRERTE
Other participants:
RboRE
Participants 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 2,844,000 — (2,349,000) 495,000
2EE
Participants 31.82005 0.6655 3182006 - 30.8.2015 330,000 — — 330,000
2E%
Sub-total: 3,174,000 (2,349,000) 825,000
Nt
Other employees:
HitfES
Employees 5.1.2003 0.3208 [5.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 660,000 — — 660,000
B8
Employees 31.82005 0.6655 31.82006 - 30.8.2015 9,956,500 (44,250 (540,000) 9372250
B8
Sub-total: 10,616,500 (44,250) (540,000 10,032,250
Nt
Total: 22,133,500 (44,250 (10,768,000) 11,321,250
i@z

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which the

options were exercised was HK$0.88.

*

Upon passing of resolution for the bonus issue by a shareholder resolution on | June 2010 and

pursuant to the 2003 and 2005 stock incentive plans, the exercise price of the share options

granted under these plans and the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise

of the subscription right attaching to the outstanding share options were adjusted in accordance

with the terms of the plans and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter from the Stock

Exchange dated 5 September 2005 relating to adjustments to share options.

HEBREETEASN - BROOMETY
W EA0.88ETT o

* R2010F6AIBUREAZR BB
MR e 1714 - R 2003 F & 2005 F Ak 15 S EDET
I BEZSHEMREBRENTEER
E2ETEI A M ARTHEBRE . ZEED
B RBETHRGE A BREE B EGX
KBS ET 2005469 A5 AR RERBRERRE Y K
HREM B 78 5 0 -

BLBERERAH
2012 8 57



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the chief
executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™) ) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positons which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

"Model Code"), were as follows:

EEHESRITBRAERRKRA - 1264
BROREFNERZRAR
R212F12A318 B SRTHAER
HEENHEARRR B LEBEEZECGE
ERBFRBEGRI(ERRBEEADE
XVED) RIS - ARG REFHEERE
FERBERPIEXVIETRESH AN
SERDAI MBI E R AR (BERE
BB RO ERBRERNERIOR
B REBEF LHERHIE 352 RELHE
RARAFEMNELMANEZRAR - &
BEITTBETAESETESFRHNREST
AI([R2AE=F R ]) A E AR RAE) R TR R
BIOABWT

Ordinary shares of the Company: RATEBER

Percentage of the

Company’s

issued capital

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares EERAREEIT

BEpE EEME BB BRAKNE D

Hu Xiang Personal 25,433,500 3.15%
FiE2) EPN Long Position
KB

Shao Zhiguo Personal 27,740,075 3.43%
ABEER EPN Long Position
=93

Yan Andrew Y. Personal 742,500 0.09%
A ok fEA Long Position
=9

Yang Dong Personal 742,500 0.09%
FR EPN Long Position
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors interests in share options of the Company are set out in the

Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2012, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the Company
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of the Company: EABRERKR
Percentage of the
Company’s
Number issued capital
Name of Director Nature of Interest of shares EARAT B BT
EEHE BEME B EE BANEDL
Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 28.55%
Holdings Limited ERBEBA Long position
HHEERAR AR KB
SB Asia Infrastructure Fund L.P. Beneficial owner 168,299,994 20.83%
BEREAAN Long position
9=
SB Asia Pacific Partners L.P. Interest of a 168,299,994 20.83%
controlled corporation Long position
RYEH A AR =9

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2012, Directors' interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“ZTE")

60

Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang, Directors of the Company, are members
of the 39 shareholders (“Beneficial Owners”) of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Ltd.
(“Fangyi"), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% in
ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012,
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Weixiantong). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49% shareholding interest
in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. (“Zhongxingxin™), which in
tumn had approximately 33.87% shareholding interest in ZTE.

Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang together held approximately 6.10%
shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect
shareholding interests in ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen

Weixiantong.
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As at 31 December 2012, Directors' interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Kang Cheng")

. Shao Zhiguo, Director of the Company, has directly maintained approximately
10.5% equity interest in Kang Cheng, a supplier accounted for 6.2% purchases of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 15%

shareholder of Kang Cheng.

. Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (““Shenglongfeng”)

. Hu Xiang and Shao Zhiguo, Directors of the Company, have directly maintained
approximately 2.0% and 4.7% equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a supplier accounted
for 0.8% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 20%

shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

. Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxindi")

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 0.5% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2012, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen
Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen Weixiantong
owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn had a 70%
shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi.

. Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of

its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2012.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter [4A of the Listing

Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares of the Company in
public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the minimum public float as set

out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEE

The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The audit KARDHRVEZEZES B ZEMBES
committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports to the cEREEERR-RABUIINTES
Board of Directors. RMEFSRE °

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2012 ERLZESCEHAEEEE2012FI12A
have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the opinion that 3B FERNGEVBHRE  RAAZEHE
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and legal requirements, HFEHEBesrEREZEZHRTTEELRER

and that adequate disclosures have been made. WEE -

AUDITOR BB ED

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as BERREEFAE LREREZR  BHELT
auditor of the Company. =g o FER T GEAITT AR RIZEAD
On behalf of the Board REREFE

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. ELERARD A

Hu Xiang HA

Chairman -

I3 March 2013 2013F3H13H

BLBERERAR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO,, LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development Co,, Ltd.
(the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 67 to 148, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

BYZBERE

BELBRRARATRR
(RESESFMA L ERAF])

AZER(ATHBIERM) EERIERE
CEIBEELERERARERANDRE
HEFRAl(ABIEEE NG EMBERE -
BERA M BHRREER20012F12A31BH
REMBMRABKREBEZB LFENGE
FEBRBRE  GERREZDBRRLEGER
ERERE  UREASHERRBEREM
HEAER o
EERGEMBEBRRARENER
ERAESAAERBEAGHMAREM
R BN BRELENREAATGINEER
HEREEELNTNEAMBERE  URE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

I3 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEZEHRE®RER

For the year ended 3| December 2012

HZE2012F12 31 BIEEE
2012 2011
20126 201 | 4
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000

Py e AR®T R ARETT

Revenue WA 7 687,764 798,060
Cost of sales HEMA (572,047) (585919)
Gross profit EH 115,717 212,141
Other income H Al A 8 13,516 14,232
Research and development costs %R AR (47,567) (37,591)
Distribution and selling expenses D RHERX (47,869) (55,041)
Administrative expenses TERAX (76,071) (80,784)
Finance costs BT RKAR 9 (1,005) (58)
(Loss) profit before taxation BAT (E51R) 7B (43,279) 52,899
Taxation A 10 3,807 (10,541)
(Loss) profit and the total comprehensive (expense) <2 R #EH A FE{E HY

income for the year attributable to FEER)FBR

owners of the Company 2HEHAX)BALEH I (39,472) 42,358
(Loss) earnings per share FR(E8) &N

~ basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARED) 14 (4.94) 531

— diluted (RMB cents) - BE(ARED) 14 (4.94) 521

BELBERERDA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 31 December 2012
R2012%12 A31H

2012 2011
20125 2011 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
e ARBTR ARETT
Non-current Assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - R R 15 231,532 203,532
Deposits for purchase of plant and equipment BEMFELREEERSE 3,946 24818
Prepaid lease payments BREERKIE 16 29,697 20,239
Deferred tax assets ERETRIEEE 17 12,830 6,063
Intangible assets B EE 8 19,663 13,481
297,668 268,133

Current Assets MEEE
Inventories FE 19 282,925 326,88
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M YRR 20 704,895 764,035
Tax recoverable AU el F7E 314 3,348
Prepaid lease payments HARNEERIE 16 659 453
Pledged bank balances BERRITER 21 4,197 5,738
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIAR 21 264,392 300,112
1,257,382 1,400,567

Current Liabilities ik JIE=i
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMENRR 22 482,270 539,887
Dividend payable FERTAR 2 698 699
Tax payable JER 1A — 10,862
Bank borrowings RITER 23 54,360 45,209
537,328 596,657
Net Current Assets ME)EE R 720,054 803910
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERARBDAME 1,017,722 1,072,043
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 31 December 2012
201212 A31 8

2012 2011
20125 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BT ARETR ARETT
Non-current Liability FRBEFE
Deferred income EEWA 24 6,712 4421
Net Assets BEFR 1,011,010 1,067,622
Capital and Reserves PR K s
Issued capital B EITRA 25 6 6
Reserves 1 1,011,004 1,067,616
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AREEE AEEER 1,011,010 1,067,622

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 148 were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 13 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

ESFAREE
Hu Xiang Shao Zhiguo
7 RS
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2= =

Fe/E 4BENGAVEREAEEETERN
20133 A I3 BREMBTET)ZE - WHAT

7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERBEHEHR

For the year anded 3| December 2012

HZE2012F12 31 BILEE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
Issued Share  expansion reserve Special reserve Retained
capital premium fund fund reserve (Note 26) profits Total
BET kit LERE  EEER KA BRERRE RE

LEN HE -5 ARE e (Ma2e) 27 @zt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR

At | January 2011 R20IEIAIR 6 572,675 3034 25263 2999 5022 428,895 1,037,894

Transfer 2 F = — — 6,063 — — (6,063) —

Exercise of share options 1Tl RARRE — 1,072 — — — (339) — 73
Profit and the total comprehensive ~ FEFiE R

income for the year FEBALE = — — — — — 42358 42358

Dividends paid BRRE — (13272) — — — — — (13272)

Shares repurchased (note 25(a)) BEERS (FE250) — o — — - - — o0

At 3| December 201 | R2l1E12A31H 6 560,384 3034 31,326 2999 4683 465,190 1,067,622

Transfer BE — — — 892 — — (892) —

Exercise of share options TR — 5470 — — — (2,090) — 3380
Loss and the total comprehensive EEBER

expense for the year 2HRLEE = = = = = — (39472) (39,472)

Dividends paid BERRE — (19,509) — — — — — (19,509)

Shares repurchased (note 25(a)) EEDARH (M 25() — (1011) — — — — — (1,011)

At 3| December 2012 R2012F 12831 B 6 545,334 3034 32218 2999 2593 424826 1,011,010
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and a statutory
surplus reserve fund which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are
made out of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by their respective
boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
their prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of
capitalisation issue. The enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base

of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share premium of
the Company may be applied for redemption or purchase of any shares of the Company,
payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, payment of its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. During 2012 and 201 I, dividends,
to the extent in excess of the Company's retained profits, were funded out of its share

premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of MOBI Antenna
Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen™), a subsidiary of the Company,
and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in connection with the acquisition
of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired pursuant to the group restructuring
completed on 19 December 2002, at which time the Company entered into an equity

transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in MOBI Shenzhen.

GERRBBRE

For the year anded 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

REBEFEARLMBE(THEINELEMNE
BERERRE  AARNTEFLRA
ERMIERA DIREVEE RS - EEH
RESRAERBRLES - ASHETHR
RIETPEFRENEEMBIRERAZ WA
BRESMEL  SRROREESFHEE
EQRTE  EERHLABEURERMBESF
HEBE(INA) AR BEE A RITERK
BA - PRERESUBBENMCEITRIE
BRPEFRRNERER -

RERESHEAREQ00FEAE) » AA
) 8 IR A5 (B 7] AR A BB [l 3k B B AR X R
R - MRESZ M A IRRE - BEEERE
X nike A - AR B EED
BREP NI ER - K2012F %2011
FR - EREBBARARNREET - A8
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERTREB®MRK

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

2012 2011
20124 2011 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETT

Operating activities KEEE
(Loss) profit before taxation FAl (&) A (43,279) 52,899

Adjustments for: A TIEE L FHE

Depreciation and amortisation e R 26,755 24616
Write-down on inventories FEMH 1,555 415
Government grants related to assets HEERBNOBRN#EDE (1,209) (1,258)
Interest income from bank deposit BITEMBOREBRA (1,624) (3,195)
Release of prepaid lease payments AR TANTEE IR 659 453
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BFE KEEN R (22) (19)
Investment income from structured products LIBIEERRIRE WA (3,849) (4,238)
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE 204 568
Finance costs BITSRCAR 1,005 58
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital KT & EE S E L ZRERE (19,805) 70,299
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (M) 42,401 (19,441)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B 5 KA YR TR A (3B ) 58,936 (30,266)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNRTORD (50,923) (111,633)
Cash from (used in) operations rEME(MA)RE 30,609 (91,041)
Taxation paid ERHIE (10,788) (13930)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities REFTH(FA)ELT ©FHE 19,821 (104971)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERTREB®MRK

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BILERE

2012 2011
2012 FF 2011 5
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT ARETT

Investing activities REEE
Interest and investment income received EHFH S RIRERA 5,473 7433
Government grant related to assets HEERENRNHSE 3,500 867
Development costs paid BERNERKAR (10,167) (9,710)
Placement of structured products FEABLER (944,500) (1,018,226)
Withdrawal on structured products HisEBEEm 944,500 1,018,226
Placement of pledged bank balances FEEEMRITER (18,057) (363)
Withdrawal of pledged bank balances REHE ERRITHAR 19,598 7,636
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEENHEERE (10,323) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERRE (32,701) (46,347)
Deposits paid for purchase of plant and equipment HEERE LREXNHRE (3,946) (24,818)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BFE KRB FFEHIE 77 64
Net cash used in investing activities REZDMAREFE (46,546) (65,238)
Financing activities METH
Proceeds from issue of shares BRI PG 5O 3,380 733
Dividends paid BERRE (19,510) (13,308)
Repurchase of shares EARE G (1,011) @n
New bank loans raised FIGIRITER 41,758 92,209
Repayment of bank borrowings BREBITEN (32,607) (47,000)
Interest paid BERFLE (1,005) (58)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities RETH(FA)ELR TR (8,995) 32,485
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEWRD (35,720) (137,724)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIAIBNRERREEEY 300,112 437,836
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December R12A31 BnRe kB 2EFED
represented by bank balances and cash (AMRITEHRRIRE) 264,392 300,112
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

74

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Cayman Island and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
on |7 December 2009. The address of its registered office is Maples Corporate
Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY- 1104, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business is 7 Langshan First Road Science and

Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its principal subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group") are

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS™) 12
EE R FEGFEDE 125 (BTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Financial Assets

SRTA: BE-SREEER

BERMBRELEE7HRUETA)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures
- Transfers of Financial Assets in the current year. The amendments increase the
disclosure requirements for transactions involving the transfer of financial assets in
order to provide greater transparency around risk exposures when financial assets

are transferred.

The Group has arrangements with various banks to transfer to the banks its
contractual rights to receive cash flows from certain notes receivable. Specifically, if
the notes receivable are not paid at maturity, the banks have the right to request
the Group to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these notes receivable, it continues to
recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the
cash received on the transfer as a secured bank borrowing (see note 23 (c)).
The relevant disclosures have been made regarding the transfer of these notes
receivables on application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 (see note 20). In
accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7,
the Group has not provided comparative information for the disclosures required

by the amendments.

2.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERHFHITRKIETERBMER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs
BEMBREE(BATX)
Amendments to HKFRS 7
BEMBREENE 75 (BFTX)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 andHKFRS 7

BEARBRELEF IR RBBPHERELE7HRUETAX)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS || and HKFRS |2

BERMBRELEIFE 105 - BEMBREELNE 15K

BB BRELERE 125 (BF]A)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

BEMBRELEF 105 - BEMBREERE 1257 %

BB GERFE 275 (BFTA)

HKFRS 9
BRMBREEAE 9
HKFRS 10
BRMBREEAE 05
HKFRS 11

BB REEAE 15
HKFRS 12
BRAMBREENE 125
HKFRS 13

BAMBHSENE 135

HKAS 19 (as revised in 201 1)
BEAGERE 195201 | FLIBET)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1)

EAE LR 75201 1 FEIEET)
HIKAS 28 (as revised in 201 I)
BEGEERIE 285 (201 | FEIERT)
Amendments to HKAS |
BRGERNE 5K (BTX)
Amendments to HKAS 32
BAEGTERE 325 (BFIAR)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20
BA(ERMBRERBEZES) —REE 0%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Cont d)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2015

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2012

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given

in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business,

net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are

satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree

usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

5 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will

flow to the Group; and

J the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Revenue recognition (Contd)
Revenue from sale of antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage

extension solution is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment other than properties under construction less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on

a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont @)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of

initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represented those designated as at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

0 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

J the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided

internally on that basis; or

0 it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Structured products are designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition because
they contain one or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire

combined contract (asset or liability) to designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising
from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest eamed on the financial assets and is included in the other income line item

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank balances
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on loans and receivables below).

Impairment of loan and receivables

Loan and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Loan and receivables are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

J breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest and principal

payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of loan and receivables (Cont d)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade receivables and notes
and bills receivable that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30-240 days (201 I: 30-240 days), observable changes in

national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,

sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and

also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the

vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised as income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from (loss) profit before tax as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if all the

following have been demonstrated:

c the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;

0 the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

0 the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

J how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

J the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible assets; and

S the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible

asset during its development,

The amount initially recognised for intemally-generated intangible asset is the sum
of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses (if any).

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (ie. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of

the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (Contd)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2012, a deferred tax asset of approximately RMB12,830,000
(201'1: RMB6,063,000) in relation to deductible temporary differences and tax loss
of MOBI Shenzhen have been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position (note 17), as the directors of the Company expect that Mobi Shenzhen
will generate sufficient profit to utilise the deferred tax assets given the continuous
expansion of 3G markets and the roll-out of PRC 4G markets by the PRC network
operators. In addition, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
of approximately RMB30,560,000 (201 I: RMB21,016,000) of EELLRI (A %) B
BR X ] MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co, Ltd. (“MOBI Xian") and FEELBHE (B7)
B2 7] MOBI Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK"). The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future assessable profits generated are more or less than expected, a recognition
or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or

loss for the period in which such a recognition or reversal takes place.

Write down of inventories

The Group write down inventories obsolescence based on an assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to inventories where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower
than the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories requires the
use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories.
The amount of written-down would be changed as a result of the changes in
telecommunication market conditions and technology development of the industry

subsequently.

The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December 2012 is RMB282,925,000 (net
of write down of RMB 2,904,000) (201 I: RMB326,881,000 (net of write down of
RMBI,349,000)).

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (Contd)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount which is higher of the value in use and fair value less costs
to sell of the intangible assets. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the intangible assets and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or there is downward revision of estimated
future cash flow due to unfavorable changes in facts and circumstances, a material

impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amounts of intangible assets at 31 December 2012 is RMB19,663,000
(2011: RMB13,481,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued capital, share premium and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendation of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,

new share issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new bank loans.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 6. HRAMEERERKE
Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the criteria for FESECREENCRAEBRMN
recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases on which income and TESHECR(BREEREN  HEE
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial ERIRE ERELE)NFBRHE3
liabilities are disclosed in note 3. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed WE - ZESRIAENFBRENT
below:
Categories of financial instruments SRIANESR
2012 2011
2012 F 2011 F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Financial assets tRMEE
Loans and receivables (including ER KBRS

bank balances and cash) (BRERITEBRRES) 926,525 1,014,774
Financial liabilities tRAE
Amortised cost B SH PR 504,650 523,255
Financial risk management objectives and polices MERKRERAEREEK
The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, AEENTECRTIABEESRA
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, dividend f EUBR T - EEARITAERR - RIT
payable and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed rukRie BHREMEMNEX -
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and ERNRERRITER - tEERTA
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management MFEEREENERE 225 e
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are I ERENRRRENE @ ERD
implemented on a timely and effective manner. BRHINMT - EREERNERE

R - LARER KB BB B ATIA
EHHEHE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Conta)
Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash and pledged bank balances, which represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the end of the reporting
period. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables
and notes and bills receivable. The credit risk on trade receivables and notes and
bills receivable are concentrated on top five customers of the Group. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
and notes and bills receivable at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the

directors of the Company consider the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited because the majority of the

counterparties are international banks and state-owned banks with good reputation.

During the vear, the Group purchased from banks certain short-term structured
products whereby the return is determined based on the return of portfolios
of debt or equity instruments as invested by that banks. The management of
the Group considered that the risk is limited as the banks are reputable financial
institutions in the PRC. No structured products were held by the Group at 31
December 2012 and 201 |

The Group sells most of the products to a limited number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand relationships
with major wireless network solution providers and major network operators, the
business may continue to be impacted by unanticipated demand fluctuations which
can have a negative impact on the revenues and business, and an adverse effect on

the results of operations and financial condition.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. HIBEBEMETEEERKEZ)
Credit risk (Cont d) EERKR(E)
The Group has a significant concentration of customers. For the year ended 31 AREBRNRPESESER « HE2I2E
December 2012, aggregate sales to the top five customers of the Group accounted 2A3IBIEFE  MASELARF
for approximately 88.4% (201 1: 89.9%) of the total sales. Amounts due from EHESHE A L (h 5 & 4 5 49 88.4%
them as at 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB409,240,000 (2011 4F : 89.9%) = 2012F 12 A
(2011: RMB359,679,000), representing 84.6% (201 |: 76.4%) of trade receivables 3B EIRARBEEMZELN A A
(before making allowance for doubtful debt) as at 31 December 2012. These R #409,240,0007T (201 | 5 = A R ¥
major customers are PRC network operators and domestic and overseas wireless 359,679,0007 ) * 152012%F 12 A31 B
network solution providers with good reputation and repayment records. WEWE ZERR(RTRRERE) W
84.6%(2011 6 : 764%) - ZZELTER
FREERFBENERCHENDE
BRELERERIMNERBERART
RELER -
Currency risk B ERE
The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables, REBAIINEHEERKE - BAE
bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group are denominated HETREKE SRR R1T486 - B
in United States dollar (“USD"), Euro (“EUR") and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD"), NEBSEFRBRITEZAEZET(E
currencies other than the functional currency of the Company's principal ) (BT ) RABT(AT])
subsidiaries, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently HE(ZEEESIERNTETEFNA
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management BINREE ) » (F RS B 78 A IR I EE [
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign B o ANE B B B £ (T a] 9B 5 B
currency exposure when the need arises. KoRm ERECERINERR
DBREEZREHEANIMNERR o
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets REFHRAEBAINEAENES
and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BERSHBENEREENT
2012 2011
20012F 20115
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8 BE AfE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTT ARETT
usD eI 83,933 21,442 92,437 27,366
EUR B 7T 5,822 — 4817 —
HKD BT 2,827 1,423 2,594 [,185

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Conta)
Currency risk (Contd)

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (201 1: 5%) change in the RMB
against USD, EUR and HKD. The 5% (201 1: 5%) represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analyses of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment of translation
of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative number indicates an
increase in post-tax loss of 2012 and a decrease in post-tax profit of 201 | where
RMB strengthens against USD, EUR and HKD. For a 5% (201 1: 5%) weakening of
RMB against USD, EUR and HKD, there would be an equal and opposite impact on

post-tax loss or post-tax profit.
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2012 2011

20125 2011 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Increase in post-tax loss or decrease in Biie B EE IR E A
post-tax profit (i) ()

If RMB strengthens against USD WARB R ETLHE (2,657) (2,758)
If RMB strengthens against EUR g AR KB T HHE (247) (204)
If RMB strengthens against HKD AR EETIHE (68) (59)
(i) This is mainly attributable to the outstanding foreign currency receivables, () ZEBFERBAEERINEHE
bank balances and bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period EMRERARKREEBENING

arose from the foreign currency sales in the Group.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the year.

FEMRERSR ~ SRITAEERMRTTIERN

BEHERS ARFEMNRRY TR
BRERRERR - S BERES LA
RERER B HOSNE RS ©
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100

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Conta)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from pledged
bank balances (note 21), fixed rate bank borrowings (note 23) in 2012 and
2011, Interest bearing pledged bank balances and fixed rate bank borrowings are
mainly short-term nature. Therefore, any variations in interest rate will not have a

significant impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market rates (note 21) and floating rate
bank borrowings (note 23) in 2012 and 201 1. It is the Group's policy to keep

borrowings at fixed rate at as to minimise the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following illustrates the potential effect on post-tax loss or post-tax profit for

MERREEEERBE£)
FlEER
AEER2012F R0 FEE S HIT
BITRER (M2 - ERBITRER(H
H)EENAFEFRER - T EE
BRBRTESREBBRTEETEAR
T - At FAFEEHER
HAEERNEBENEA

i

B o

W

AEBMR 2012 %201 | FEHIRBITH
MR BORITERZT2) KF
BHRTERNERELENRERE
F =B B o AN 5 B A SR S DA B E A &
BRERE URERLBEERENE
[k o

AEEE AL &M
e EEREERFEELR
FEREBEHPEANRER

KEHBEK - A
THEH

HEERRBERIAMKINBENEECY

the year: 2T
2012 2011
20126 2011 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®ETTT
(Note a) (Note a)
(GESY (FfizEa)
If the interest rate goes up fisi I = £
Decrease in post-tax loss or increase in Bl BB B
post-tax profit 0 617 649
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Conta)

Interest rate risk (Cont d)

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

BBEBEREEERBKE)
FMEERE)

2012 2011
2012 F 2011 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®ETTT
(Note a) (Note a)
(MzEa) (fiEa)
If the interest rate goes down oFiEN S
Increase in post-tax loss or decrease in Tt 1% B 18 AN sk At 12 71
post-tax profit B (640) (723)
Notes: BaE
(@) If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and interest rate on short- (a) BERRITAE BT XL N30 E %% '

term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and all other variables

were held constant.

(b) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign currencies had
been 0.1 basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and interest rate on short-term
floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all other variables were

held constant.

Other price risk

During the year, the Group purchased certain short-term structured proudest from
banks which was measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements
and therefore exposed the Group to other price risk. Since no structured products
were held by the Group at 31 December 2012 and 201 |, no sensitivity analysis is

presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group are approximately RMB435,312,000 (201 I:
RMB498,252,000).

P2 HF BERATIE A A R IE N 50 {8
B MAREMERRETE -
b)) BRABTRAGINSHENRTE
EREA = S R 0.1 {EE 2 K 30 fEE
B MEHTEBRITEIOFERTER
SOEZER: - MATAAMBRIRISTE -

HitERER

FR - AEERETEERGZE NS
WERANAATENE TRREREE
T MAREAXEMBRER - AR
AEBR-_ZE-——_FR-_F——F
+tZ A=+ BIYERALEBLE
o R 25 HRE DI o

RBE SR
RRBEERERERTD  KAEEEE
ERF-—FEKRKINRERBELEFE
W CERERARABRNAKEZ
BT WRNERREMEKSH
FE BEEEERERTERNERR
HERETERZL -

AEBUHHRBTEENAAR
#435312,0007(201 1 E: A R ¥
498,252,000 7T ) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. BERMREEEERBEEZ)
Liquidity risk (Cont @) REBELERE(E)
The Group relies on bank balances and cash, and bank borrowings as a source AREBKBHETEB LR S URERT
of liquidity. Undrawn borrowing facilities of the Group are approximately EREAREES TR - N20124 12
RMB292,313,000 (201 I: RMB342,660,000) as at 3| December 2012. A3 A AREEREMHERLOAA
R #2923130007T(201 15 : AR
342,660,000 7T) ©
The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for its financial TRAEKREBSHEBERTEREE H
liabilities. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent RIS - ZxkBINMNERFER S
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from e o WA BIRFEFAERAE - BIR
interest rate at the end of the reporting period. RS REIR MR RAE o
Liquidity risk table REBESEBRE
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 012
interest rate Payable 0t030 31 to 60 611090 91 t0 180 180 to 365 cash flows R0nE
il 337! on demand days days days days days SiE 128318
17k EZREE 0230 360K 61290K IIZI0K 180Z365% RER FEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% AR¥Tn  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR
2012 WE
Trade and other payebles ~ BHREMERE NATER 196,534 101,476 63531 1,10 49,199 9730 49592 4959
Dividend payable ERRE NATER 69 = = = = = 698 698
Bank borrowings Rl
~Varible nerest ete —HEHE 258 - 1259 - - - - 1259 12571
~Fived interest rate ~EAHE 661 - 21918 - - 20616 - 4534 41789
197232 135992 63,531 29,122 69815 9,730 505,422 504,650
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
HZE2012612A31 BEFRE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. HIBEBEMETEEERKEZ)

Liquidity risk table (Contd) RBELRBER(E)
Camying
Weighted amount at
average Totl 31 December
effective undiscounted 011
interest rate Payeble 0030 311060 611090 9110 180 18010 365 cash fows R011E
e on demand days days days days days BRIR 128318

ERAR EEREE 0Z30% 3IZ60K 61Z90% ITINE  IB0ESK kg AR
% RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO00
% AEETT ARETL ARETT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

2011 NIE
Trade and other payebles ~ BHREMERE NARER 05812 94149 68574 68217 1263 7959 477347 471347
Dividend payable ERRE NATER 69 - - - - - 69 69
Bank borrowings Rl
~Variabl interest rate —REHE 258 - - - - 12764 - 12764 12602
~Fixed interest rate —ERAE 945 = = 20023 = 12833 = 3285 32607
26511 94,149 88,597 68217 38233 7959 523,666 523255
Fair value NEE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined in accordance PREENEHEENAFEEAR
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The EEEX  BENRBELRENITM
directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities BT -ESR5 WEBEKA AL
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate EHMERRANEREELRSRBEDN
their fair values. FEEEEAFERS °
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

7.

104

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system - manufacture and sale of antenna system and related products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacture and sale of base station RF subsystem and

related products

Coverage extension solution - manufacture and sale of a wide array of coverage

products

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

WKWARDEER (£Z)
EHEIBUWARDIBEENER
2012 2011
20125 20114
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Segment revenues 2 EUA
Antenna system N ES D 271311 248,025
Base station RF subsystem B SBT 24 284,496 472,151
Coverage extension solution BERMAER 131,957 77,884
687,764 798,060
Segment results DEEE
Antenna system PN L 42,035 54,711
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 19,401 94,191
Coverage extension solution BERMAER 6,714 25,648
68,150 174,550
Reconciliation of segment results to (loss) profit D EREENA
before taxation: (B18) A %A
Other income HEiA 13,516 14232
Unallocated expenses AABERX (123,940) (135,825)
Finance costs BITSR AR (1,005) (58)
(Loss)profit before taxation BAT(EE)FE (43,279) 52,899

BELBERERDA
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. WARSHERE)
Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d) BRI BUARDHEENER(E)
2012 201
2012 F 2011
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Other segment information HitpHER
Depreciation: nE:
Antenna system PN L0 4,737 4479
Base station RF subsystem EU ST T 24t 4,967 8,527
Coverage extension solution BELHAR 2,304 | 407
Segment total (note) o BT (fH3E) 12,008 14413
Unallocated amount PVl 10,762 8543
Group total SBA 22,770 22,956
Research and development costs: TSR A
Antenna system PN 21,529 13,597
Base station RF subsystem B SR T 2 23,009 19,505
Coverage extension solution BELMAE 3,029 4,489
Group total (note) SBE () 47,567 37,591
Amortisation of intangible assets: BIVEERH
Antenna system PN E L 1,469 809
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 2,516 851
Group total SBA 3,985 1,660
Note: Amounts included in the measure of segment results izt - ERFEABOBEENTE
Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external customers. X E2HHBARKBIINDEF K
There are no inter-segment sales during the two years ended 3| December 2012. A BE12FI2A3IB EMEF

A& EEHE

1 06 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate other
income, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs and
income tax expense to individual reportable and operating segments when making
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assessing their
performance. This is the measure reported to CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

Entity-wide disclosures:
Information about products

Revenues from each group of similar products within the operating segments are as

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

BAR D BER(#)
BRI BRARD BEEANER(H)

A2HHBHS R ER 3T
AEEGHBERMER - AEERATE
HEERTEERD BRAGERE
o TEREMKA  DEREER
¥ ABRRAE - MBRARAEHRRA
IORTHEANEBMBEEEDE - T
AkmEERARAZRUBEIEE
BRHERBRHAR o

AREERAGBIHERTEARS
EERRAZBUAREEREFER
BHYEZIIZFEM

ERXEKEESR:
AHERNER
AR ) B A B AR L am A8 Bl O A

follows: N
2012 2011
20124 2011
RMB’000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETTT

Antenna system KEEHE

CDMA/GSM antennas CDMA/GSM K 4% 82,608 70,054
W-CDMA antennas W-CDMA K45 42,532 73,556
TD-SCDMA antennas TD-SCDMA ii? 18,297 12,616
Multi-band/Multi-system antenna L VET S PN 71,778 52,423
Microwave antennas R R4 10,567 14,077
Other antennas Hibh KR 39,529 25299
271,311 248,025
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For year ended 31 December 2012
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) WARDIHER (&)
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont @) ERZEREER (&)
Information about products (Cont d) BERERNEN(E)
2012 201 |
2012 20114
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Base station RF subsystem HIGTIEF R
CDMA 2000 RF devices CDMA 2000 5 #8231 11,475 12,836
CDMA RF devices CDMA gf 58281 14,734 21,409
GSM RF devices GSM g1 #2814 140,191 370,355
TD-SCDMA RF devices TD-SCDMA 51 888 {4 27,172 13,394
W-CDMA RF devices W-CDMA 55828 14 57,801 34,325
Other devices Hith 284 33,123 19,832
284,496 472,151
Coverage extension solution BEEMFLE
In-door antennas PN 457 697
Aesthetic antennas EHN 23,851 31,428
Electric cables BiE 75,005 14,502
Other products H A 2 o 32,644 31,257
131,957 77884
687,764 798,060

1 08 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Entity-wide disclosures: (Contd)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 0% of the

total sales of the Group are as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

WARDEER (&)
ERZEREER : (£)
ERIEEFNER
REREBFEHASERHEERR
B8 0% EFHBAMT -

2012 2011
20125 2011 4F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Customer A
Customer B?
Customer C?
Customer D?

Customer E?

ERA
BB
EFC
EFD
EFE

263,765 256,552
140,559 72,039
95,545 86,310
66,635 176,975
41,359 126,057

revenue from antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution

revenue from antenna system

: revenue from base station RF subsystem

TZRERERS  EUMFATF RS
RBELRH RHRA

2 TRRBRERGHYA

’ TERERUGTAT RGRRA
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. BWARSHERE)
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont @) ERZEREER (&)
Geographical information EER

BRASERBINBEFRANER
TIRBERXNENNLEZS)

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented

based on the location where the goods are delivered to:

2012 201 |

20125 2011 4F

RMB’000 RMB'’000

AREFT AREFT

PRC H 623,311 683,327
Overseas BB

Thailand Zx B 23,862 99

India e 10,736 235

Mexico itk 3,798 41,832

Finland 2N | 1,872 37,243

Others Hih 24,185 35,324

Subtotal NE 64,453 114,733

687,764 798,060

REBFMEFRDEE(EEFREELE
the PRC. BN IR AR o

All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are located in

1 1 O MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2012
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

OTHER INCOME 8. EHfttrA
2012 2011
20126 2011 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Government grants BB E
— related to expense items (note a) — x5 B B (it a) 5,849 4,159
— related to assets (note 24) — BB (PN 24) 1,209 1,258
Compensation income EWA 579 1,207
Interest income from bank deposit RITERHNEWA 1,624 3,195
Investment income from structured products (note b) #& B 1 E RARE WA (HiFEb) 3,849 4238
Others Hity 406 175
13,516 14,232
Note: B aE

() The amount mainly represents government grants received form the PRC tax bureau to
encourage the Group's continuous development, and the amounts are based on value-
added tax previously paid and recognised in the profit or loss. No specific conditions have

been required to be met.

(b) The amount represents investment income from short-term structured products with
banks, which carry variable returns based on the return of portfolios of debt or equity

investments as invested by banks.

@ ZHRIBRERBECHNEERAE
HEARERBINBG#HD S BA
HRFTEGRM  DhTERBERER
TEARBASERFEER

b) ZFBERRONEHEBUEERM
FRERA - BRITAEEBIRA
REBSODHAEFBER -

FINANCE COSTS 9. BBRA
2012 2011
2012 20114
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAE
— wholly repayable within five years —2HARAFANER 1,005 58

BELBERERDA
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

10. TAXATION HIE
2012 201 |
20128 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBTR ARBTT
Current year: REE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") B ER (R BEREMER]) 2,960 10,947
Deferred tax (note 17) EIERE (FT5E 17) (6,767) (406)
(3,807) 10541

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from

income tax. It is not subject to tax in other jurisdictions.

Hong Kong

The applicable tax rate of MOBI HK is 16.5%. In 2012, no Hong Kong Profit Tax is
payable on the profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since the assessable profit of
MOBI HK is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward. In 201 |, no provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made in the consolidated financial statements as

MOBI HK had no assessable profits.

PRC
The applicable tax rate of MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian are 25% (201 I: 25%) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

In 2008, MOBI Shenzhen was a High and New Technology Enterprise defined
by Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen
Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation
(the “Authority”) and therefore was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate from PRC
enterprise income tax for three years starting from 2008, according to the New
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 31| October 201, the Authority has further
extended the preferential tax rate for further three years. Accordingly, the tax rate

for MOBI Shenzhen is |5% for the two years ended 31 December 2012 and 201 |.

1 1 2 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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10. TAXATION (Contd)

PRC (Contd)

Tax charge for the year is reconciled to (loss) profit before taxation as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

0. BIE#E)
HE (&)
FERIE X W RN A (EE)FBYHER
M

2012 2011
20125 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTT
(Loss) profit before taxation Bia(&E)FIE (43,279) 52,899
Tax at PRC EIT at 15% RABEEABHRBE
15% 5t B HFHIE @) (6,492) 7935
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TERERERTORBETE
for tax purpose 1,825 2013
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBANH B E
for tax purpose (181) (189)
Tax benefit gk (b) (1,074) (2.206)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERNBERNNETE 1,531 1,329
Utilisations of tax losses previously B A R R R IEE
not recognised (99) —
Effect of different tax rates of group entities ~ SEEEMNTNEHENFE 683 |,659
(3,807) 10541

Notes:

() Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of MOBI

Shenzhen, the major subsidiary of the Company which generates majority of the Group's

assessable profit.

(b)  Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme for certain PRC subsidiaries that, in addition to

the research and development cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further

50% of the research and development cost incurred is deductible.

Wi :

@  IS%HEREHMEEEEAEEA
BOERHEFINA DA LR FARE
LAY VAR PSR K o

b) FiBHFEESETHET AR EZR
gl BIBRFAE K AERETIEIN - BN
50%H) B EE AT EE B A TR AT HIFY ©
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mEMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

1. (LOSS) PROFIT AND THE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

(Loss) profit and the total comprehensive (expense) income for the year has been

arrived at after charging (crediting) the following items:

ERREREABLENFE(BR)
MERZE (X)) WARE

FE(BER)MNBEEE2E(F) WAL
BEMBRGIAVATER -

2012 2011

2012 F 2011 F

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Directors' remuneration (note 12) S22 (P 12) 2,890 2481
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRBHETEIHR 9,450 6,986
Other staff costs (a) Hir B TR (a) 133,479 136,249
145,819 145716

Auditors’ remuneration ZERE & 1,701 1,587

Operating lease rentals in respect of BRENTEENKEHERS

— prepaid lease payments —FERNBEERE 659 453

— rented premises —BAmE 10,044 9,431
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Mm% - BERERERTE 22,770 22,956
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESH 3,985 1,660
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERARAXNFENAR 572,047 585919
Whrite-down on inventories FEMR 1,555 415
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment &% - BFE K& E O (22) (19)
Allowance for doubtful debts REER 204 568
Net exchange (gain) loss BE 5 (U ) B 1R %8R (147) 7,249

Note:

(@) Included in other staff costs is approximately RMB3,326,000 (201 I: RMB2,514,000), which

represents the rental expense for the staff quarter for the year ended 31 December 2012.

1 1 4 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS |2, BZE - ER{THRAEREE#MS
ESRERITHRAEMS

AEBEENEERNAARINAITES
HIRTESRRLTHRAENBHE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the executive directors

and non-executive directors and chief executive of the Company by the Group are

as follows: mEmT
2012
2012F
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic
Retirement  salaries, bonus
benefits  and allowances)
scheme Hit €
contributions (FEEH
Fees RIKGER ;%238 Total
ue SRR RERER) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB'’000
AR¥TT AR®TR ARWTRT AR%TR
Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang (note a) A (Pt a) 4| — 759 800
Wang Guoyin (note b) TR (PR D) — 29 605 634
Shao Zhiguo (note b) AREE (P b) £yl 29 649 710
Non-executive directors FHTES
Qu Degjan JEfER 84 — — 84
Yan Andrew Y. Bk 8l — — 8l
Yang Dong FR 8l = = 8l
Lai Yongxiang FBIK[A] 84 — — 84
Independent directors BIEE
Li Tianshu FRE 146 — — 146
Zhang Han R 135 — — 135
Bao Fan B 135 — — 135
819 58 2013 2,890
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mEMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Cont'd)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)

Ex  ERITBAERESHME
(&)
ESRERTHAEME (&)
2011
2011F
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic
Retirement  salaries, bonus

benefits  and allowances)

scheme Hiifc

contributions (F26#
Fees RIKEER & - Total
e AR R RER) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT AR®Tn ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang (note a) A (P a) — — 927 927
Wang Guoying (note b) F B (FFEEb) — 26 787 813
Non-executive directors FHITES
Qu Degian EE% 85 — — 85
Xing Qibin (note c) TR ECH (BT ) 42 — — 4
Yan Andrew Y. 7k 82 — — 82
Yang Dong FR 82 i — 82
Lai Yongxiang FE K [A) 32 — — 32
Independent directors BYEE
Li Tianshu FREF 148 — — 148
Zhang Han R 135 — — 135
Bao Fan B 135 = = 135
741 26 1,714 2481
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)

(Note a) Mr. Hu Xiang is also the chief executive of the Company and his emoluments disclosed

above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

(Note b) On 30 March 2012, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Wang Guoyin
from executive director and approved Mr. Shao Zhiguo as replacement with effect from

I April 2012.

(Note ¢) On 22 July 201 I, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Xing Qibin from

non-executive director with immediate effect.

During the two years ended 3| December 2012, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors, the chief executive or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors, the chief executive or the five highest paid individuals has

waived any emoluments during the two years ended 31 December 2012.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals included three (201 I: two) directors and chief
executive for the year ended 3| December 2012, details of whose emoluments are
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (201 I: three) highest paid

individuals are as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

EE  BRTBASRESEMS

(&)

EERBRTHRARBME(A)

(Mia) MARETFARRATREH M
ERREMS B ERIERTRER
RERIEM S -

(MizEb) 201243 A30F E=e#HETH
HEEFERTES - UHERE
BEEB202F47  BEEBH

AEFB -

(MizEc) 2011 E7A0NB EFSHER
HEWRERHTENMTES AL

% -

BHEWNRFNAJIBILREE &
SEVYEMESE SMTBRARST
AEEFMATINME  EREE
MBS MBAREE & RE - skE
ABEBEE - ZE20012F12A31H
LREFE BEEMNES  SRT
BABS T A&SHMA T HERER
EAEE -

B8
BZ20NRFNA3NABALFE A4
EmdMATEE=40011F ™
REERRRITHAE - REHMS
BN X o HEMA (2011 F - =
B)mEETMATHMESHIN AT

2012 2011

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET R ARETT

— salaries and other benefits —Fe R EMmER 1,192 2,488
— contributions to retirement benefits scheme — RIREFIFTEIE R 29 76
1,221 2,564
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

2.

118

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 12.

(Cont'd)
Employees (Cont d)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Ex  SRTRAERESHS

(&)

B8 (&)

2012 2011

20012F 2011 F

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAY EEAH

— HKD nil to HKD 1,000,000 — %I E 1,000,000 87T 2 2

~HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 — 1,000,001 & 7T E 1,500,000 /& 7T — |
DIVIDENDS 13. KR

2012 2011

2012F 2011 F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: ~ F ATERIED KA S
201 | final dividend of HKD0.02 and special dividend 201 | £ REIfR B & @Mk
of HKDOO! (201 1: 2010 final dividend of HKD0.02)  0.02 7T K& 555l B B A%
per ordinary share L@mAR0.01 BL(2011 £ -
2010 F RHBE0.02787T)

19,509 13272

No final dividend for 2012 was proposed and recommended by the directors. The
final dividend of HKD0.02 per share and special dividend of HKDO.OI per share in
respect of the year ended 3| December 201 | was approved by the shareholders

in the 201 | annual general meeting on 25 May 2012.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2012

EEUEREAREBIRMN2012FHK
B s - EWIIFI2AINBILE
B/ AR HIIR B 8 1% 0.02 78 70 & B Al A%
BEER00IBTHBRRR2012F5A
25 HERITH01 I FRFEBAFAS L
3



14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The eaming figures for calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share

attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the following

data:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

Bk (BR) &R

UG ERRREBRERARES
BREAREE(BER)BNNANEF
TR R T oI BURR & -

2012 201
20125 201 | £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®TTT

(Loss) earnings
(Loss) profit for the year and attributable to owners

of the Company and (loss) earnings for purpose

(B&) &
ARAIHEA AREFAER)
FBRBETESRERR

of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share B (B18) B fm (&18) &R (39,472) 42,358
2012 2011
20126 2011 F
’000 '000
TR T
Number of shares R EH
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for AEFEGRER(ER)BFH
the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share LR T8 799,624 797424
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares LTRREEEETE
— 2003 share options —2003 F ik iE = 9,254
— 2005 share options —2005 S & IR i — 5614
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for AEEBREE(BER) BT
the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings per share L RS al 799,624 812,292

For 2012, the diluted loss per share did not take into account the assumed exercise

of the Company's outstanding share options since their exercise would result in a

decrease in loss per share.

BT AR A B A el R 1T B AR %
BYEREBRD - R0 FEKkE
BE B E T KR AR TTE B R
BITENTE -

BELBERERDA
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BERRE
Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment  improvements Motor Plant and Construction
Buildings & - HE vehicles machinery in progress Total
BT RERRE NELE AE BERES ERIR @t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR ARBTR ARBT ARETR ARETR AR®TR
COST BA
At | January 2011 R0IIEIAIE 81,805 11811 7,590 4152 123006 15255 243619
Additions NE 853 1197 1,887 543 15524 34481 54485
Transfer ELE 1,600 — 1090 — 6924 (9614) -
Disposals HE — (168) — (131 — — (299)
At3] December2011 #2011 E 12 A31 A 84258 12,840 10567 4564 145,454 40,122 297,805
Addtions NE 7951 1154 — 97 22594 19,029 50,825
Transfer L E = 5 — — 13,354 (13.3%9) —
Disposals HE — (133) — (296) Q) — 31
At3] December2012 #2012 12 A31 A 92209 13866 10567 4365 181,400 45792 348,199
DEPRECIATION ik
At | January 2011 R0IIEIAIAE 6762 5577 2207 2447 54578 — 71571
Provided forthe year SR 252 1862 1403 656 16,509 — 22956
Eliminated on disposals {1} % 4 & — (129) — (125) — — (254)
At 31 December 2011 120114 12 A31 B 9,88 7310 3610 2978 71,087 — 94273
Provided forthe year R 2611 1587 1493 3% 16,723 — 2,770
Eliminated on disposals {1 & # 34 — (94) — (281) 0) — (376)
At31 December2012 #2012 12 A31 A 11,899 8,803 5103 3053 87,809 — 116667
CARRYING VALUES IR
At 31 December 2012 1220124 12 A31 B 80310 5063 5464 1312 93,591 45792 231,532
At3] December2011 #2011 € 12 A31 A 74970 5530 6957 1,586 74367 40,122 203532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 5.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of

lease or 30 years

Fumniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 19%
9.5% - 31.6%
Motor vehicles 19%

9.5% - 19%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

The Group's buildings are situated in the PRC under medium-term land use rights.

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership certificate
for a building with carrying amount of approximately RMB7,579,000 (201 I: nil) as
at 31 December 2012. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant
property ownership certificate can be obtained in due time without incurring

significant costs.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

M - BER®RE (2)

MmE - BERZRB(ERZIRZEING
EDREABFRHRAUNEREL
R R EBEERIRATFEMEH
PG |

BF MEFH
30 (AR
RERE)

AR RERFZE 19%

MEMEEE 95%Z31.6%

"E 19%

BB a8 9.5% = 19%

AEBURPEOBFRDHLIHE
ARSI -

AEBEEHE-BEFNEBEE
FTERE  ZBFR2012F 1243
BHREBELN R AR®75790007T
(11F: %) ARAEFRR ' 7
EEBGEBAEEMERES Mg
EEERNKA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

6.

BNEERE
2012 201 |
20128 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARBTR ARETT

Land use rights in the PRC PO B A & 3th {58 FA
Medium-term lease hHIHE 30,356 20,692
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EX b
Current portion ENEAEE 2 659 453
Non-current portion FERNEREE 7 29,697 20,239
30,356 20,692

The Group was in the process of obtaining the relevant land use right certificate for
the leasehold land with carrying amount of approximately RMBI0, 118,000 (201 I:
nil) as at 31 December 2012. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
relevant land use right certificate can be obtained in due time without significant

costs.

1 22 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
HZE2012612A31 BEFRE

DEFERRED TAX 17. EEHRE
Excess of
accounting
depreciation
over tax Unrealised
depreciation profit of inter-
Allowance BEHE  Alowancefor  company sales
for inventories BHBIHE  doubtful debts  AFEHEM Tax losses Others Total
FERfE RENER RERE REF A HEER Hth act
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETTT AEETTT ARETTT AREFT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At | January 201 | R01IEIRIAR |64 4748 206 539 = = 5657
Credit (charge) to
profit or loss ERERAR (NR) (99) 264 85 Q1) — 177 406
At 3! December 2011 #2011 12A31R 65 5012 el 518 = 177 6,063
Credit (charge) to
profit or loss ERHEREAR (k) 137 (1287) — 153 7482 282 6767
At3I December 2012 #2012 124318 202 3725 21 671 7482 459 12,830

The deferred tax asset as shown on the consolidated statement of financial position

is RMB 12,830,000 (201 I: RMB6,063,000).

RERERRBRERAMRELERIBEE
B AR 12830,0007T(201 1 F - AR
#£ 6,063,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

17.

124

DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
approximately RMB30,560,000 (201 1: RMB21,016,000) available for offset against
future profits. Included in unrecognised tax losses are approximately RMB762,000
(201'1: RMB1,421,000) that may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
unrecognised tax losses are approximately RMB29,798,000 (201 |: RMB19,595,000)

that will be expired as followings:

EEBIE (&)

RERBR  FEBRERTEESE
# A R ¥30,560,00070(2011 F A
R #21,016,0007T ) 7] AR 86 R K05
M o REERT BB+ 05 &R
EEHARET762,0007T(2011F A
R#1,421,0007T) © 82 T RERH B
B84 AR %29,798000 7L (201 | 4F
AE# 19,595,000 70 ) # A A T E 5
HR -

2012 2011
2012 2011
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETTT

Unrecognised tax losses with expiry in: KU TEE BB R ERTEEE -
-2013 —2013% 4,131 4131
-2014 —2014 4 4,248 4248
-2015 —20154F 3,779 3,779
-2016 —2016%F 7,437 7437
- 2017 —2017 % 10,203 —
29,798 19,595

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB322,944,000 (201 I: RMB359,945,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

BVEE

Development

costs
BRI
RMB’000
ARETT
COST B
At | January 201 | R20I1%F1A1B 5936
Additions NE 9710
At 31 December 201 | R20I1 128318 15,646
Additions NE 10,167
At 31 December 2012 MW2012F 12 A31 B 25813
AMORTISATION #
At | January 201 | M2 E A I H 505
Charge for the year FAME 1,660
At 31 December 201 | W20 F 12831 H 2,165
Charge for the year FARHIR 3,985
At 31 December 2012 M2012% 12 A31 B 6,150
CARRYING VALUES BRTE {8
At 3| December 2012 MW2012F 12 A31 B 19,663
At 3| December 201 | W20 F 12831 H 13,48

RGER(TERBERZ RHERE) RE
THETSET RG(LTER RS RE AR L
BRI B RN RN
Ed N ERBEE3IFRNER
EEE o BERAAPHARKE 15708
Te(201 1 : ARM9008 7T ) B K 82
EREAENESRERER Bt
BTSN -  ReefERTERGH RS
ZREHSGAAEEESHERER
B MU EERREESE -

Development costs on antenna system (LTE antennas and Multi-system Antennas)
and base station RF subsystem (LTE filters and new models dedicated for some
customers) are internally generated and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the 3 years when they are ready for use. Included in the development costs
of approximately RMBI5.7 million (201 1: RMB9.0 million) were relating to
development of systems not ready for the intended use and, accordingly, no
amortisation was made. The developments of systems not ready for the intended
use are expected to generate net cash flow to the Group, and no impairment loss

has been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe)

BB R M

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

18.

126

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont ) 18. BEEE (&)
At 3| December 2012 and 3| December 201 |, the Group conducted a review of M20125F 12 431 B %2011 12 A3
those Group's intangible assets, which are not ready for the intended use. B AEBEERMEREEREAR
MR BE -
The recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculations. The key AEleEREABAETESL - £
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, AEETENERBRR S RITRE -
the new products’ growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct FERERERELRERETEND
costs during the period that cash flow forecasts are made. Management estimates Fﬁ’%fﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁk$ﬁ’ﬁﬁ,ﬁ;ﬂ 2H o E8
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the EBRARMLERTSYHEEREER
time value of money and the risks specific to the intangible assets. The growth rates AR & EE A = B o 25 B A R 57
are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs BIRE - EREDENTERERTE
are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market. B - EEREEXANEH IR
BRELRETSHRREGOEY
fE
For impairment purpose, the Group prepared cash flow forecasts based on financial HEEMNS  AEERELEERER3
budgets approved by management covering a 3-years period, taking into account FHEMENTHEERERERE
the anticipation of further expansion of 3G markets and the roll-out of the PRC 4G R WERINAHABETLEERRN
market in which the intangible assets are developed for. FEH 3G IGH)E — FHER M E R
hE 4G °
As at the end of the reporting period, any reasonably possible change to key RERAKR  BEMKAARBRRA
assumptions applied are not likely to cause the recoverable amounts to be below FAEEAEEH T RIS ERA
the carrying amount of intangible assets. K EeEENELEENREE -
INVENTORIES 9. F&
2012 2011
20126 20115
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBETT
Raw materials Rt 67,745 57,881
Work-in-progress & m 37,293 39,218
Finished goods BUpK an 177,887 229782
282,925 326,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EBEZRHEMEWERR
2012 2011
20124 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Trade receivables FEUE ZBR K 483,547 471,056
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (2,143) (1,939)
481,404 469,117
Notes and bills receivable W Z 1% 156,171 220796
Rental and utility deposits Me kEkEe 2917 2,89
Advance to suppliers [ 44t FE 7 B 5K 4,276 9,319
Value added tax receivable JE W IE (A R 42,683 45,792
Other receivables and deposits H o EUBR T R 2 & 17,444 16,115
704,895 764,035
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RFBEEEE)
Balance at beginning of the year FHES 1,939 [,371
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE 204 568
Balance at end of the year FIRAER 2,143 1,939

AEBETEBRLELEOARE
2,143,000L(2011FE: A R ¥
1,939,000 7T ) 89 2. &l R (B e W B 5 B
F o BHERER - ARARAKEZ
FREERNEE TR WEFRER
BREGE AEENEREANZE
FEERIVIE TR o

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately RMB2,143,000 (201 I:
RMBI,939,000), which have defaulted on payment. The Company considers that
the recoverability of these receivables is low and therefore allowance for bad and
doubtful debts has been provided. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont )

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base
station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to
its trade customers, which range from 30 to 240 days (201 1: 30 to 240 days),
for a significant number of the Company's products, although a longer credit
term may be extended to certain customers, depending on price, the size of the
contract, credibility and reputation of the customers. In order to manage the credit
risks associated with trade receivables effectively, credit limits of customers are
evaluated periodically. Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the high ranking record attributable to their corresponding research on the

creditworthiness.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade receivables net of

impairment losses at the end of the reporting period:

20.

EZRHEMEWERR (&)
AEERNEBESEPRERGRS &
BT R RBET R RRET
XEREXNEEN  ARAAREE
MAEESRNT30E 2408 (2011 F
302240B )L/ - BETREP A
ZERRMNGEES RIER &R
A BFNEREREEBMAMRT
Fle- RARERHEERESRFIEH
MEERRE  AARTHHEEFHNE
ERFEETHME - RREEMEAHT
EFPH - €RBRENERPNERL
BRABERPHNEEER - REM
AEEES AERBHNERED
W E ZRT AT EERTR

NTAREFHPREET AR
W B 5 RR (BB ERR) M RER 2
#r

2012 2011

200125 2011 F

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0230H 231,228 207,131
31 to 60 days 31 260H 55,978 42,154
61 to 90 days 61 290 H 34,666 17,525
91 to 120 days 91 EI120H 11,409 27,290
121 to 180 days 1212180 H 20,046 44993
Over 180 days 238 180 H 128,077 130,024
481,404 469,117
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd) 20.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes and bills receivables

at the end of the reporting period:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

BEZREMBRIRR (&)
ATRAREBRPRREZB TR
WRERRER DT

2012 2011
2012 20114

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

AR¥TR ARETTT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 36,451 12,670
31 to 60 days 31E60H 29,698 100,64
61 to 90 days 61 £90H 39,867 50,574
Over 90 days @90 A 50,155 5691 |
156,171 220,796

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

ERHBELERENEKEHERN

RRER DT

2012 2011
2012%F 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 282 =

31 to 60 days 312 60H 84
61 to 90 days 61 290 H = —
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120H 627 68
121 to 180 days 121 =180 A 965 58
Over 180 days 838 180 B 3299 3460
Total st 5,257 3,587

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group's trade receivables of RMB80,198,000 (201 I: RMB81,053,000), were

denominated in USD and EUR, foreign currencies of the respective group entities.

AEBBERSAZETEROEER -

AEBENERESEFISARE

80,198,000 70 (201 | 4 :

AR K

81,053,0007C) * LWEBEETEE 884

HETTRBITYIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)
The following were the Group's notes receivable as at 31 December 2012 that
were transferred to banks on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to
recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the cash
received on the transfer as a secured bank borrowings (see note 23(c)). These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group's consolidated statement

of financial position.

As at 31 December 2012

20.

EZRHEMEWERR (&)
ATEAEER2012F12A31 8%
PHERELEEZTRIINEKRER
i - EE?B‘AZISEJ‘E%M%\EHFEM&
EREBENERRREER  Haf
éfa%%ﬂﬁwwﬂzﬁ% A AREE - e
BRAERMERNRSEREEAR
TRR(AME23C)  ZESHEE
BB KRR AR BERE BMBIRR R
FIIER

M2012F 12831 H

Notes receivable
transferred to
bank with

full recourse
BEEER
EREETRIT
NEWEE
RMB’000
ARBT R

Carrying amount of notes receivable e R EREE
Carrying amount of secured bank borrowings BEFRITEFREE

21,789
21,789
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/ BANK BALANCES AND

CASH

The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original maturity
ranging from 3 months to 6 months and carry fixed rate interest of 0.35% per
annum during the year (201 I: 0.05% to 1.31% per annum). They are pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and bills payables of the
Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% per annum during
the year (2011: 0.001% to 0.5% per annum).

Certain of the Group's pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash with an
aggregate amount of RMB256,715,000 (201 I: RMB287,894,000) were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The government of the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash of RMBI 1,874,000 (201 I:
RMB17,956,000), were denominated in USD, EUR and HKD, foreign currencies of

respective group entities.

21.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

EEMBITER RITEHRR
B
AEENEEARTERERFER
EEFHA=M@AZANEA  REF
035 (2011 & : F005E =131
E)MEEMEXGFEMRITER B8
BT E2RRITEATEERITEER
AEEEMNRENER

FEENRITEHEEASOEREE
E#FRE RIZSF0001 EE035E
(201145 : BF000IEE0S5E)NE
RS H R BEMRITER

AEEETEHEPBRTEBRERITE
BRRE AHARK2567150007T
(201145 © A R %287,894,0007C ) JA
ARBHE  MAREILIERE M
BRLREY FBERNETINEE
Hl - BESELPBFEIINEFETE
BT R IE SR 5 -

AEBETRAOLGHBEREAR
B 1187400072011 A R ¥
17,956,000 70 ) AR B & 8% B 15N
T BT KBTTEE
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

22.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ESREMENSERER

2012 2011
20128 2011 F

RMB’000 RMB' 000

AR¥T ARBTT

Trade payables FERTE SRR 327,342 319,064
Bills payables ARES 88,639 125,073
Payroll payable ERTE 14,136 11,376
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment f& & 15 - 5 K 5% & #0 FE T BR K 2,592 9,286
Value added tax payable FERT B (AT 13,080 5373
Accrued expenses HREA 8,030 7,805
Receipt in advance TEWKRIE 19,598 54,447
Others HAth 8,853 7463
482,270 539,887

RERPRZEZAHFANERNE S

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade payables at the end

of the reporting period: R RO T
2012 2011
20126 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARETT
0 to 30 days 0230H 62,591 32,450
31 to 60 days 3IE60H 38,222 36,483
61 to 90 days 61 290H 34,878 25,742
91 to 180 days 912 180H 122,394 99,264
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 69,257 125,125
327,342 319,064

Typical credit term of trade payables ranges from 60 to 120 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 22.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of bills payables at the end

of the reporting period:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

EZREMENRRE)
REFHPRREZAHORNRE
HRRERDITANT :

2012 201 |
20125 2011 £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 23,474 40,464
31 to 60 days 3I260H 25,532 42,725
6! to 90 days 61 290 H = 200
Over 90 days 890 A 39,633 41,684

88,639 125,073

Typical credit term of bills payables ranges from 90 to 180 days.

Certain of the Group's receipt in advance and others of RMB7,949,000 (201 I:
RMBI 1,689,000), and RMBI,647,000 (201 I: RMB3,561,000), respectively, were

denominated in foreign currencies of respective group entities.

ENRENEEN - KEER0AE
1808 -

AEEEFTHRKREREMD BIA
R #7949,00070(2011 F: A R ¥
11,689,0007T ) & A B # 1,647,000 T
(20114« AR¥3,561,0007T) Rik&E
EEREEMIINERTE -
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

23. BANK BORROWINGS

23. RITER

2012 2011
20126 2011 F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
Categories %5l AR¥TR ARETT
Short-term bank borrowings: FHIRITRESN
— Unsecured floating rate borrowings —EEAERER (a) 12,571 12,602
— Unsecured fixed rate borrowings — B EEER (b) 20,000 —
— Secured fixed rate borrowings —EHEMELER (0) 21,789 32,607
Shown under current liability RRBEEETZ5 54,360 45,209
(@)  The unsecured floating rate borrowings carried at a rate of London Interbank () EEMIEEREGBIRTRA
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 2% per annum (201 |: LIBOR plus 2%) which is ERBFE[RBERTRERE
denominated in USD. M pN2/EQ011 F : fmERIT
RZEFEFIEM2E)F R R
B AETTEHE -
(b)  The unsecured fixed rate borrowings carried at the rate of 6.16% per annum (b) EEARTEERNFENERG6I6
(201 I: Nil) which is denominated in RMB, E(Q011F : B)ar 8 UARE
FHE ©
()  The secured fixed rate borrowings are secured by notes receivable carried () AERATEEERABKREETN

at a rate of 7.14% per annum (201 1: 9.45%) which is denominated in RMB. EH ZERUZEBEFEFNXRA
714E(2011:9458)  AARKE
HE - HERKERARENE

Al TR - UL EAR R o

The related notes receivables were discounted with recourse and therefore

they have not been derecognised.
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received for

acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment.

The deferred income is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful

life of the relevant assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are as

follows:

24. EEWA

BIEWN 15 B WO IR B 1 U 78 B
& ARBERRENE  BERR

& o

BEWAZEEEENE A ERF

mF

2012 2011

2012 2011 F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Government grant related to assets HEERENBA®RBE

At beginning of the year REF] 4421 43812
Additions NE 3,500 867
Released to profit or loss NER AR A (1,209) (1,258)

At end of the year RER 6712 442

BELBERERDA
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

25. AATRA

Number of shares

Issued capital

Kkt #E BRTRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
20126 2011F 2012F 20115
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EER ER EER gl
‘000 ‘000 usb usD
TR T e e
Ordinary shares of USD0.00000] F#%0000001 =TT
each g B
Authorised EE
At beginning and end of the year REPNRER 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At beginning of the year REA] 798,531 797,148 79853 797.15
Exercise of share options TRREMRE 10,768 1,383 10.77 1.38
Share repurchased and cancelled EEEREZHERRD
(Note) (F¥aE) (1,479) — (1.48) —
At end of the year RER 807,820 798,531 807.82 798.53
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

25.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

ERRRAEE)

Issued capital

ERITRA
2012 2011
2012 F 2011 F
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
Equivalent Equivalent
ZEEER FEEBK
RMB RMB
AR ARETT

Issued and fully paid ERITRAE

At beginning of the year REA) 5,600.52 5591.55
Exercise of share options 1T RE R 67.69 897
Share repurchased and cancelled (Note) BREL kB HERG () (9:30) —
At end of the year RER 5,658.91 5,600.52

Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at
31 December 2011 and 3| December 2012 was rounded to RMB6,000 and
RMB6,000 respectively.

There is no movement of authorised ordinary share during the two years ended 3|

December 2012.

P01 1231 B 200125 1283
ARG BRRBRINREET
BAD BN BARE 60007 R ARE
6,000 7C

BHE202F 12 A3 B Ik M EFE A
7E EILHXIE A o

BELBERERDA
20124 8 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Notes:

a) During both years, the Company repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange

as follows:

25. RQBBRA(E)

FfEE -

RAEAEE - AAFZEBB AR
THABEAEES SR -

No of
ordinary
shares of
Month of repurchase USD0.00000 Price per share
e A6 each BRERK
BREE
0.000001 Aggregate
E 3 Highest Lowest consideration paid
HEBREE BE RiE ERAKE
HKD HKD HKD RMB
BT BT BT ARBT
2012 20125
January IA 396,000 094 0.84 355,152 287922
February 2A 173,000 1.02 0.95 173,058 140,800
March 3R 68,000 099 099 67475 54,743
April 4H 185,000 095 0.89 173,393 140,552
May 5H 160,000 099 093 154,360 126,156
June 6H 50,000 094 092 46,598 38014
July 7R 313,000 091 0.84 273,380 222,859
1,345,000 1243416 1,011,046
2011 20114
December 124 134,000 0.85 0.80 112,058 91,327

All above shares were cancelled during 2012.

None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities during the year.
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share options were granted on |5 January 2003 (“2003 Option”) and 3| August
2005 (“2005 Option") for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees with expiry date on |5 January 2013 and 31 August 2015
respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share options
to an individual consultant or advisor who renders or has rendered bona fide

services to the Company.

At 31 December 2012, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under 2003 Option and 2005 Option
was | 1,321,250 (201 1: 22,133,650), representing |.41% (201 I: 2.77%) of the total

ordinary shares in issue at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be exercised
at any time from |2 months after the date of grant of the share options to the

tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

26. UROXNHRS

2003 | A I15H %2005 8 A31 H
FT 1% B B R (9 R BT 2003 F B IR
BIRI2005FREREDOEFEBNZ
MESERAERESRMEREE  MmZ%
EWBEESBIR2013FIAISAR
0I15F8A3IBER - REAAAHN
BRETE ARREEGARTA
EREE(BEARAREFARINE
F)ARBARRARMOEBARRE - b
Oh - RARIAIFRER AR L BARR A
1R £ 5 3 AR 75 0 1 51| 35 5 R S s R
B B ARAE o

R2012F 128318+ 5 1R #E2003F
R 2005 F B IRE R HE DR
TR BB IRAERT S R &)L @R 2 A
B 11,321,250 8% (2011 & : 22,133,650
R) - ERERARE BT LT BRAE
B 1.41%(2011 % : 2.77%) °

MERRLBREMNENNEE - B
BRETAEREAHETF 2EAZKE
BHHBF PR EAERETE -
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

U BN 5 (&)
BRESOARERENFBENT

Exercise price Fair value

(Note) at grant date

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period oy RHAH

BREER RitAH BED i (W) WAFE

2003 Option 15/01/2003 150112003 to 14/01/2007 15/01/2004 to 14/01/2013 RMBI .76 RMBO.9S

2003 F R E 2003F | A I5H W03F1 AISAZE 004F1 AI5AZ ARE176T  ARB095T
20071 A 14H WI3F A 14A

2005 Option 31/08/2005 31/08/2005 to 30/08/2010 310812006 to 30/08/2015 RMB3.66 RMBI.36

2005 FHE MR 1E 2005F8 A3 A 005F8A31AZE W006F8A3IBE ARE36T  AREI136T
201068 A30H 201568A30H

Note: Pursuant to the board resolution on | June 2010, the exercise prices of 2003 and 2005
Option have been adjusted to RMB0.3208 and RMBO0.6655, respectively.

All 2003 option and 2005 option are exercisable as to 25% of the total number of
options on the first anniversary date of grant, and as to the remaining 75% in 36
subsequently equal monthly installments commencing on the last day of the month

following the month of the first anniversary date of grant.

In respect of the 2003 Option and 2005 Option exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise are HKD0.89 and HKDO0.97
(201 1:HKD2.42 and HKD2.44) respectively.

1 40 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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REGEEAFABUTHEERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

26, URBZANRSF (&)
TEBESERALTEAN AR AR

eligble persons: IR R B E) -
2012 20125
Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired at
.1.2012 during during during during 31.12.2012
R2012E the year the year the year the year R2012E
IAIH RER RER RER RER 128318
Option type BRER WA it RE e iR WA
2003 Option 2003 FEEARE 11,847,000 - (10,228,000) - 1,619,000
2005 Option 2005 F R E 10,286,500 = (44250) (540,000) = 9,702,250
22,133,500 = (44250) (10,768,000) = 1,321,250
Exercisable at the ARERITE
end of the year 1,321,250
Weighted average IETATEE RMBO4787 - - RMBO.3378 - RMBOSI2!
exercise price ARB04787 ARB03378 T ARB06121 T
2011 20115
Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired at
1.1.2011 during during during during 31.12.2011
#2011 & the year the year the year the year #2011 &
IRIB RER RER RER RER 128318
Option type BREER WK 7 L e W W RATHE
2003 Option 003 FHRE 12,298,000 = (451,000) = 11,847,000
2005 Option 2005 FERE 11,218,500 - — (932,000) - 10,286,500
23516500 = (1,383,000) = 22,133500
Exercisable at the ARERITE
end of the year 22,133,500
Weighted average IMETHTER RMB0.4829 — RMBO.5497 — RMB0.4767
exercise price ARB048297 ARB05497 T ARB04787 7
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. REHEEARE
The Group as lessee FEEEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the RERAR  REECRBEEINLA
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under non- TR—BEEANTIT IR HHEZ
cancellable operating leases with outsiders and a related party, which fall due: SRAAFBAERYES AR T

FEZIMORRRERS

2012 201 |
20125 2011 £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —FR 9,519 9,387

In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_ZFNF(EREMEREEAN) 5710 14,896

15,229 24,283

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five years, METHBEME  —ZERFHAR

HEEE °
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BEAEIE

2012 2011

2012F 2011 5

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BB EED % « BE &
in the consolidated financial statements in respect KRBV N ERBHES
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment B REZBENE AR 8,617 19,718

1 42 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2012



29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local government. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian are required to contribute 0%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of the payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the

specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
RMB9,508,000 (201 I: RMB7,012,000) for the year ended 3| December 2012.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)  During the year, the Group has the following significant transactions with
Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd. (7RI T B4 JEiBR%
BRAT]) (“SZWS") which is controlled by a group of common beneficial
owners, who collectively has significant influence over the Company and
SZWS. (details of which are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 4 December 2009).

The significant transaction between the Group and SZWS are as follows:

29.

30.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

BIKBERGTE

AEBMES I A B R INER
ERRABMFEWKE - BLLR
I Bt ELERELALED BIET
BRCAHE 10% ~ 20% K 20% A 3R R A& Fl
FEERERIERBANES - ZF
RAIMRREA T EIREERRIEL

HEEMRK

HEZW0NRENAINBILLEE K&
BEERERRBHEIETBARE
9,508,0007C(201 1 5 : A R#7,012,000
JC) °

BEALIRS
@ RER - AEBERYMELE S
BREERAR(RY I LE)E
TATEAR S R cimha—
HERYARRRF) S BEE
FENEZRER ARG
FBERARBR2000F 1284
AT BRER) o

AEBEERNGELTBETHNEKR
RBWT

2012 2011

20012 2011 F

RMB’000 RMB'000

Nature of transactions RHME ARMTF T ARBTT
Rental expenses ME& X 1,215 1,169
2012 2011

20125 2011 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

Related party balances REALER ARETF T ARBTT
Other receivables Hth Y AR X 72 72
Other payables H At AR X 2 2

Note: The balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

i ARAEER RERNERAEE -

BELBERERDA
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(b)  Operating lease commitments

30 BEAXTRZ(#)
(b) REHERE

As disclosed in note 27, at the end of the reporting period, the Group was W27 HEEE  RERDY
committed to make the following future minimum lease payment in respect * NEBBEIREBEEZRYELB
of a rented premise under non-cancellable operating lease with SZWS, SRR B S L RHE A
which fall due: P AE AR W0 56 S ST T dat i e 31 R
MARREHRST

2012 2011

2012 2011 F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®TTT

Within one year —FR 1,215 [215

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF(FEEMERRFEAN) 202 | 417
1,417 2,632

The lease is negotiated and rental is fixed for lease term of 3 years. HEDHEmME  =FHHAN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

©

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

were as follows:

30.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

BEALRZ(£)

(0 ETEEBASNEM
EENTEEEEAMKENT
BT

2012 201
20125 201 | £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®TTT

Short-term benefits ySEiFER 6,394 7,399
Post-employment benefits B RA 263 222
6,657 7,621

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid by

SZWS for the two years ended 3| December 2012.

EZRTIRITRABNFMIR
BEARBRRTZBEMERE °

HZE212F 12831 HIEMESF
B —RESMNRKEHTEIH
FHEFI GBS -
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2012

HZE2012F12 31 BILEE

31.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's

subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and fully
paid registered

capital/share capital

3. AATEEFATHE
BHEMEZRBER  NQFTFRAF
BT

Equity interest

attributable

Place and date CRITRBREM to the Group
of establishment/ BX/RA AEBEERE
Name of subsidiary incorporation 2012 & 201 | 2012 & 2011  Principal activities
FRARER FRL /R AR L i B B 5 WRERWIE 02FRWIE FEXE
MOBI Shenzhen ' PRC RMB220,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
BRI 12 August 1999 AR 220,000,000 7T and radio frequency subsystems
HE EERHERBNER
199948 A 12 BHRTER
MOBI Jian ' PRC RMB33,000,000 [00%  Production and sale of antennas
BEhER 23 May 2006 AR#33,000,0007T and radio frequency subsystems
e EERHERGNER
2006 5A 23R ELIESES
MOBI Xian * PRC RMB 120,000,000 100%  Research, development and
B Aa%? 29 April 2008 AR 120,000,000 7T production of antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
20084 H29H & REEXGMER
BHRTES
MOBI HK 3 Hong Kong HKD 10,000,000 100%  Trading of antennas and radio
B 5 December 2010 10,000,000 % 7T frequency subsystems
0 RENERESRAT
2010F12A15H ZRES
) MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian are directly held by the Company and wholly foreign- (n BRI RELE 2B AR ERF
owned enterprises in the PRC. IEBECEERERE °
(2)  MOBI Xian is wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC. Q) BUHAZATEMNIIEEERCE -
(3)  MOBIHK is directly held by the Company. Q) EUHBBHARAEERA o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2012
BZE2012F12 A3 BLLERE

32. AT TR

2012 201
20125 201 | £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®TTT

Non-current Assets ERBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RFRARIRIELETMIRE 306,598 306,598
Amount due from a subsidiary W F A RIRIE 178,910 171,176
485,508 477774

Current Assets TEVEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEWF 1 RIFRIE 65,021 14,377
Other receivables H i AR 3R 613 214
Bank balances and cash IBTER MRS 2,454 64,404
68,088 78,995
Current liabilities TEARE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHF R RIFRIE 12,707 2921
Other payables H At FETBR K l,160 [,12]
Dividend payable e AR 2. 698 699
14,565 4,741
Net Current Assets MBEERR 53,523 74254
Total Assets less Current Liabilities mEERLBARE 539,031 552,028

Capital and Reserves R B
Issued capital (note 25) BEITRA(NF25) 6 6
Reserves 1 539,025 552,022
Total equality s 539,031 552,028
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For year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012612 A3 BILER

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 32. ﬂxﬁﬂﬂtﬁ%%/ﬂﬁﬁ%(@)
Movement in reserves REEH

Share option

reserve
Issued Share (note 26) Accumulated
capital premium FERERE losses Total
ERITRA  ROBE (ME2e) RIAER Bt

RMB'O0O ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMBO0O0O  RMBO00  RMB000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETL

At | January 201 | R20lIE1A1AR 6 572,675 5022 (28,110) 549,593
Exercise of share options 1T AR 1,072 (339) — /33
Profit and the total comprehensive & 7,8 & 2

income for the year LN — — 15,065 15,065
Dividend paid ERRE (13272) — — (13272)
Share repurchased (note 25(2)) B2 BRI (FizE25@)) — @n — — )
At 31 December 201 | R2011E 128318 6 560,384 4,683 (13,045) 552,028
Exercise of share options 1TE R AR 5470 (2,090) = 3,380
Profit and the total comprehensive & )& & 2 H

income for the year L ONE = = — 4,143 4,143
Dividend paid EfARE (19,509) = = (19,509)
Share repurchased (note 25 (a)) B EEEIRA (FizE25@)) — (1011) — — (1011)
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 128318 6 545,334 2,593 (8902) 539,03l
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E-Mail &5 : public@mobi-antenna.com

Website #94k : www.mobi-antenna.com

P.C &4 : 518057
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